2014
ANNUAL REPORT
3R

TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
HEEREERRRAT

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REASHSEMAIZCBERAR)
(Stock Code f&% %3 X 5% : 928)

TACKFIORI

INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED



Corporate Information

Financial Highlights

Management Discussion and Analysis

Biographical Details of Directors

Directors’ Report

Corporate Governance Report

Independent Auditor's Report

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Five Year Financial Summary

Information About the Financial Position of the Company

&1

el

UNEG]
BB E
EREEN® I

EXEEFR

RaMBMRR

BRARDAFBARR 2 E R

HEEREERRAT
2014 F F 5§

Contents
B &%

2-3

5-8
9-13
14-20
2131
32-33

34-35

36

37
38-39
40-109
10

[H=112



TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

Corporate Information
NEEH

Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth
Mr. Wang Liang

Mr. Zhang Bao Yuan

Mr. Huang Limin

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
Mr. Robert James laia Il

Mr. Lau Yu

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (Chairman)
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert
Mr. Robert James laia Il

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth
Mr. Robert James laia Il

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond
Mr. Robert James laia Il

Ms. Cheng Pui Yee

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
35/F, One Pacific Place

88 Queensway

Hong Kong

FRZSE KA
Erfk

RETRL
BEMREL

RABEEL
HEAEE

Robert James laia Il 75 &
AFEE

HRALE(FE)
RRHEEL
Robert James laia Il 7¢ &

HRALEE(FE)
BROZ 8 5t &
Robert James laia Il 75 &

RKEFL(LE)
HBALEE
Robert James laia Il 7¢ &

BEL T

B WERS ST

&
S iEEess
KEESG—E35E



The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681,
Grand Cayman KY -1 11

Cayman lslands

Room 2201, 22/F
Kwan Chart Tower
No. 6 Tonnochy Road
Wanchai

Hong Kong

www.tackfiori.com

Royal Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KYI-1110

Cayman Islands

Level 22, Hopewell Centre
[83 Queen's Road East
Hong Kong

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
Stock Code: 00928

HEEREERRAT
2014 F

Corporate Information
NEEH

BEALBESRTARLA

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681,

Grand Cayman KYI-1111
Cayman Islands

M EHE6S
HRKE
01001 E

www.tackfiori.com

Roval Bank of Canada Trust Company (Cayman)
Limited

4th Floor, Royal Bank House

24 Shedden Road, George Town

Grand Cayman KY -1 110

Cayman lslands

BE
EEARERISIH
AFHLNE

EABERIMBR LA
% 19 X557+ 00928



TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

Financial Highlights
B EE

(In HK$'000)
(F8571)

Year ended

el 10 55,648
ZA=t+-BLFE
Year ended

31 March
2l 11 53,694
=RA=1T-ALFE
Year ended
March
o] e 12 56,516
=RA=t-ALFE
Year ended
31 March 25,149
3 13 2
=A=t-ALEFE
Year ended
31 March 22,469
3 14 2
ZA=t-BLEFE

(In HK$’000)

(F&7)

s 10 (IS}
Q; 3H |EnJAra_rcElh I I (1,387,625)
e 12

e 13

At 31 March I4
W=A=+-H

164,383

142,406

148,574



HEEREERRAT
2014 F

Management Discussion and Analysis

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board") of Tack Fiori International
Group Limited (the “Company"), | present to the shareholders the results of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 3| March 2014,

For year ended 31 March 2014, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$22.47 million (year ended 31 March 2013: HK$25.15 million), representing a
decrease of approximately 10.66% as compared to the last year. The consolidated
loss attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2014
amounted to approximately HK$110.8 million (loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2013: HK$125.99 million). Loss per share
for the year ended 31 March 2014 was approximately HK6.5 cents as compared
with loss per share of approximately HK15.41 cents for the last year. The Group's
overall gross profit margin was 40.59% (year ended 31 March 2013: 24.30%).
Such increase was mainly due to effective pricing strategies carried out during the
year.

Continuing operations

Apparel retail business

Turnover of the apparel retail business amounted to HK$22.47 million (year
ended 31 March 2013: HK$25.15 million), representing a decrease of 10.66% as
compared with the last year and accounting for 100% of the Group'’s turnover
from continuing operation for both years. As for segment results, that of the
apparel retail business recorded a loss of HK$63.87 million, representing an
increase of 9.47% as compared with HK$58.34 million of last year. Such increase
was primarily related to the impairment on property, plant and equipment and
provision for onerous lease contract recorded during the year.

Secunities trading and investment

During the year, the Group was able to capture on opportunities arising from
successful execution of our investment strategy. The Group performed favourably
in the local stock market, change in fair value of held-for-trading investments
amounted to a gain of HK$14,602,000 (2013: a loss of HK$8,676,000)
were recognized in the consolidated statement of profit and loss and other
comprehensive income. As for segments, that of the securities trading and
investment recorded a profit of HK$8,856,000 (2013: a loss of HK$8,826,000).
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Discontinued operations

During the year, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in the subsidiaries
engaged in (i) luxury goods and accessories retail business; (ii) salon and beauty
services business; and (iii) pharmacy and healthcare products retail business. In
view of the unsatisfactory continuing loss-making results of those discontinued
operations, it is expected to further consume the financial resources of the
Group for sustaining these operations as the loss-making position is expected
to continue in the foreseeable future. The Directors consider that the disposals
would not only enable the Group to cease financing the loss-making operations
but also allow the Company, following completion of the disposals, to use the
financial resources of the Group which would otherwise be required in the
discontinued operations for other business purposes, which are in the interests of
the Company and shareholders as a whole.

Accordingly, the operations of (i) luxury goods and accessories retail business; (ii)
salon and beauty services business; and (iii) pharmacy and healthcare products
retail business were treated as discontinued operations in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2014. Detalils
of such disposals were set out in notes |2 and 25 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Apparel retail business

As mentioned in the Company's announcement dated 25 March 2014, the Board
intends to close down those existing loss-making shops and retail outlets of the
Group's apparel business and develop e-commerce as other sales channel for the
Group's apparel business. The Group is expected to achieve cost saving, include
rent and staff costs, from the closing down of those loss-making shops and retail
outlets in PRC. On the other hand, the Group will evaluate the performance
of the deployment of the e-commerce platform as sales channel to its apparel
business. The Board is of the view that the cost saving from close down the
existing loss-making shop and retail outlets and the change in focus of sales
channel of the Group’s apparel business is in the best interest of the Company
and shareholders as a whole.

The Group intends to close down the loss-making shops and retail outlets
gradually upon the expiry of their existing tenancy agreements and eventually
maintain about 5 shops and retail outlets in major cities, including Beijing, Xian,
Shenzhen and Chengdu, in the PRC. As at 31 March 2014, the Group had 35
shops and retail outlets in the PRC. The Group closed down 19 shops and retalil
outlets in the PRC since April 2014 and currently has |6 shops and retail outlets
in the PRC.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pursuant to the Company's announcement dated 10 June 2014, the Company
entered into a non-legally binding memorandum of understandings with the
vendor, in respect of the proposed acquisition of 100% equity interest in
China Education Media Limited at no more than HK$60 million (“Proposed
Acquisition”). China Education Media Limited and its subsidiary is mainly engaged
in the businesses of development and promotion of education software and
website infrastructure for education course. The Company wishes to emphasise
that the Proposed Acquisition are subject to, among other things, the signing of
the formal sale and purchase agreement, the terms and conditions of which are
yet to be agreed. Further announcement in respect of the Proposed Acquisition
will be made by the Company in the event when any formal sale and purchase
agreement has been signed.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group has no bank and other borrowings.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group’s had net current assets of approximately
HK$143.9 million including cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$134.5
million (2013: net current assets of approximately HK$93.7 million including cash
and cash equivalents of approximately HK$52.3 million).

On 19 April 2013, 11,455,244 shares of HK$0.I each were issued upon the

exercise of share options at exercise price of HK$0.644 per share.

On 7 May 2013, 9 October 2013 and 20 December 2013, 22,910,489,
29,783,635 and 35,740,362 ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each were issued at
placing price of HK$0.54, HK$0.59 and HK$2.16 per share through placing agents
pursuant to placing agreements dated |8 April 2013, 26 September 2013 and 9
December 2013, respectively.
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As at 31 March 2014, the Group and the Company had no pledge of assets.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group had no significant capital expenditure
commitments.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group and the Company had no contingent liabilities.

As at 31 March 2014, the Group employed 215 employees (2013: 364
employees) excluding directors. The Group remunerates its employees based on
their performance, working experience and prevailing market standards. Employee
benefits include medical insurance coverage, mandatory provident fund and share

option scheme.

Taking this opportunity, | would like to express my appreciation to Mr. Chung
Yuk Lun, Mr. Chiu Siu Po, Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter, Mr. Au Wai June, Mr. Wan
Wai Hei, Wesley, Mr. Ng Jackson, Mr. Miu H., Frank and Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora
who resigned from their positions as directors during the period to pursue their
other business commitments. It has been a pleasure working with them and we
wish them all the best in their future endeavors.

| would also like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders for their
continuous support and the management and all the employees for their
dedication and hard work,

On behalf of the Board

Tack Fiori International Group Limited

Wang Liang
Executive Director

27 June 2014
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Wang Liang (“Mr. Wang”), aged 29, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company in January 2014, holds a Bachelor degree in Physics
from Imperial College London. Mr. Wang is a director and the sole shareholder
of Cherrie Holdings Limited, a substantial shareholder of the Company within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”).
Mr. Wang has extensive experience in the international finance and project
management. He had been working in international investment banks and
responsible for clients’ project management, projects merger and acquisition and
various initial public offerings. Mr. Wang is currently an executive director of PME
Group Limited (stock code: 379), a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth (“Mr. Chan”), aged 59, has been appointed as an
executive director of the Company in October 2011, was educated in Canada.
Mr. Chan is also a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
has over 20 years experience in retail and distribution businesses. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Zhang Bao Yuan (“Mr. Zhang”), aged 48, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company in February 2014, holds a Bachelor degree in Electronic
Science and Engineering and Master degree in Communication and Information
System from National University of Defense Technology. Mr. Zhang has extensive
experience in the fields of electronic science and engineering and communication
engineering. He had been working in various PRC entities and responsible for
supervising and developing communication and information system projects.

Mr. Huang Limin (“Mr. Huang”), aged 46, has been appointed as an executive
director of the Company in March 2014, holds a Bachelor degree in Economics
from Fudan University and a Master degree in Business Administration of
Corporate Finance and Supply Chain Management from The Ohio State
University. Mr. Huang has extensive experience in import and export and logistics
management and knowledge of investment projects in the PRC. He is a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert (“Dr. Leung”), aged 64, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August 201 . Dr. Leung
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of each of
the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the Company. He
is currently the Financial and Business Development Consultant of Beauchamp
International Development Limited, which is a private company incorporated in
Hong Kong and is responsible for providing financial and business development
service to various companies. Dr. Leung has 10 years of experience in accounting
and auditing in accounting firms in England from 1977 to 1987. From 1987 to
1992, he joined Citicorp International Limited as Assistant Vice President with
a major responsibility in corporate finance matters in Hong Kong. He holds a
Doctor degree of Philosophy in Economics from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics, the People’s Republic of China, a Master degree of Business
Administration from Brunel University, England and a Diploma in Management
Studies from The Polytechnic of Central London, England. Dr. Leung has also
passed the final qualifying examinations of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants, the Chartered Institute of Management Accountants and the
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, all in the United Kingdom.
Dr. Leung is currently an independent non-executive director of Oi Wah
Pawnshop Credit Holdings Limited (stock code: 1319), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Robert James laia Il (“Mr. laia”), aged 45, has been appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in August 201 1. He is also
a member of each of the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. laia is currently an independent non-executive
director of Mascotte Holdings Limited (stock code: 136), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. laia holds a Bachelor of Arts from Central
Connecticut State University in the United States and has Master degree in Real
Estate from the University of Hong Kong. Mr. laia has over || vears' experience
in the real estate and equities market and lived and worked in Asia for over 20
years, primarily in Seoul and Hong Kong. In addition to extensive experience in
private equity real estate, he also traded Asian equities at Samsung Securities in
Seoul and Societe Generale in New York.
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Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (“Mr. Yau”), aged 46, has been appointed as an
independent non- executive director of the Company in August 201 1. Mr. Yau
is also the chairman of each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
He has over 18 years of work experience in auditing, accounting, taxation,
company secretarial, corporate finance and financial management, in both private
and listed companies. Mr. Yau is an associate member of both the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. He is also a fellow member of the Taxation Institute of
Hong Kong. Mr. Yau is currently an independent non-executive director of
Willie International Holdings Limited (stock code: 273), a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an executive director of Chinese
Energy Holdings Limited (stock code: 8009) and an independent non-executive
director of Chanceton Financial Group Limited (stock code: 8020), both are
listed on the GEM Board of the Stock Exchange. Mr. Yau holds a master degree
in Science majoring in Japanese business studies and bachelor degree in Business
Administration majoring in accounting in the United States of America.
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Biographical Details of Directors

Mr. Lau Yu (“Mr. Lau”), aged 31, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive director of the Company in May 2014, holds a degree of Bachelor of
Science in Mathematics from University of California, Los Angeles and Master of
Science in Financial Mathematics from Stanford University. Mr. Lau has extensive
experience in the international finance and project management. He had been
working in international investment banks and responsible for clients’ project
management, projects merger and acquisition and various initial public offerings.
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The Board submits their annual report together with the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 March 2014.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding. The Group is
principally engaged in apparel retail business in the People's Republic of China (the
“PRC") and securities trading and investments business in Hong Kong. Detalils of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company's principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 3| to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on page 34.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year (2013:
Nil).

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during the
year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 37
and section headed "“Information About the Financial Position of the Company”
respectively.

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for the
past five financial years is set out on page | 10.

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group during
the year are set out in note |7 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the trademark of the Group during the year are set out
in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the Company's share capital and share options during
the year are set out in notes 24 and 26 respectively to the consolidated financial
statements.
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During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities during the year.

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth

Mr. Wang Liang (appointed on | January 2014)

Mr. Zhang Bao Yuan (appointed on 26 February 2014)

Mr. Huang Limin (appointed on 31 March 2014)

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 4 November 2013 and resigned on 31 March 2014)

Mr. Chiu Siu Po (Chairman) (resigned on 4 November 2013)
Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 28 June 2013)
Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley (resigned on 21 March 2014)

Mr. Au Wai June (resigned on 6 September 2013)
Mr. Ng Jackson (resigned on 7 April 2013)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert

Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond

Mr. Robert James laia Il

Mr. Lau Yu (appointed on 13 May 2014)

Mr. Miu H., Frank (resigned on 19 May 2014)

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora (resigned on 19 May 2014)

In accordance with 84(1) of the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr.
Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth, Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert and Mr. Robert James laia I,
will retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at that meeting.

The Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting do not have service contracts which are not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation other than statutory
compensation.
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As at 31 March 2014, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executive of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company:

R-ZE-—MNE=A=+—H EERKAK
DNEEBITHRABRAR A S E AR
B(TEABARBEGRIEXVE) 2K
B HEROREFTERBLERA
RRAIRBEEFRBERIEIEFE
ZEEMIREHIAES LR L
MRADFAE EMBETAZEEENTES
RHMEETFR(EESFA])ENER
RAIRBMRACERERARMT :

RERABREEIOETZERRZ
#R:

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of Director Capacity shares held shareholding
EEpsg L3} FEEBEREE KRESVEIH
Wang Liang Interest of controlled corporation 60,461,086 (Note)
I REEE (B &E) 28.19%
Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth Beneficial owner
PR 2 8 ERkBA 6,000 0.01%

Note: These interests are held by Cherrie Holdings Limited which is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang
Liang. Mr. Wang Liang is therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by Cherrie
Holdings Limited. The interests held by Cherrie Holdings Limited are disclosed under the
section headed "SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS” AND OTHER PERSONS INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES” below.

Save as disclosed above and in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements,
at no time during the year was the Company, any of its holding company,
subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

There was no contract of significance to which the Company, its holding
company or subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year

or at any time during the year.
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As at 31 March 2014, the following companies had interests and short positions
of 5% or more of the issued share capital and underlying shares of the Company
(other than a Director or chief executive of the Company) were recorded in the
register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336
of the SFO:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each of the Company:
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R_E-—NF=A=1+—H ®BEARA
REEFNBERIEDBHEAFEL
BanBaMmas UTRA(EHES
BN S0 UN=DES YR YN IR
TR RABRARR D 5% A 2 s FOA R

RERABREABIETZEERZ
#R:

Number of Approximate
ordinary percentage of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held shareholding
KRRE® g4 FEEEREE KRESVEIH
Cherrie Holdings Limited (note ) Beneficial owner
EEREERAR (M) EXEBEAA 60,461,086 28.19%
Fidelitycorp Limited (note 2) (B 5¥2) Interest of controlled corporation
REAEZ RS 17,500,000 8.16%
Moon Light Investments Group Limited Interest of controlled corporation
(note 2) (Mt &% 2) REEEER 17,500,000 8.16%
Radford Developments Limited Beneficial owner
(note 2) (Mt 5E2) ExBEAA 17,500,000 8.16%
Notes: B3t -

(1) These represent the same interests held by Mr. Wang Liang as disclosed under the
section headed “DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES” above. Cherrie Holdings Limited is wholly-owned by Mr. Wang
Liang. Mr. Wang Liang is therefore deemed to be interests in the shares held by Cherrie
Holdings Limited.

(2)  Radford Developments Limited is wholly-owned by Moon Light Investments Group Limited,
which in turn is wholly-owned by Moon Light Trust. Fidelitycorp Limited is the trustee for
Moon Light Trust. Moon Light Investments Group Limited and Fidelitycorp Limited are
therefore deemed to be interested in the shares held by Radford Developments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2014, no person, other than the
Directors and chief executive of the Company, whose interests are set out herein
this report, had registered an interest or short position in the shares or underlying
shares of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

() ZEEaEEEXTEZRENREBRGZ
BARKE] - SR BRBEREREEMER
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PERB-RAt IRAERBANREZE
BERDRMBEONTHEER -

(2)  Radford Developments Limited F Moon Light
Investments Group Limited® & # 4 + ifl Moon
Light Investments Group Limited 8]  F3 Moon Light
Trust 2 A A © Fidelitycorp Limited & Moon Light
TrustZ 15 58 A © B It * Moon Light Investments
Group Limited % Fidelitycorp Limited 4 1% & %
Radford Developments Limited FT # f% 3 F # &

REXABREEIIN R-F-—DNFE=A
=t B HEEAAL(EEZRLAAF
FRITRABKIN  EEDDHRNARE)
RARBRBIDLAEERD T EEARE
&5 RGP FE 6T H 2 EIAE
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The Group provides a defined contribution retirement scheme under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong to all
staff. Under the MPF Scheme, employer and employees are each required to
make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, up
to a maximum contribution of HK$ 1,250 or HK$ 1,500 (effective from June 2014)
per month. The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries the PRC are members
of a state-managed retirement benefit scheme operated by the government of
the PRC. Detalils of the retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group seeks to generate profits in its core businesses through the efficient
employment of treasury activities. Treasury activities, if and when undertaken by
the Group, aims to enhance the return on surplus cash and to assist those core
businesses to run smoothly. Efficient management of surplus cash is achieved by
conducting short-term treasury activities when opportunities arise.

All subsidiaries should comply with the Group's treasury objective and policy.
The Group has designated subsidiaries to carry out certain short-term treasury
activities including securities investment and money lending activities. The
investment securities activities and money lending activities will only be conducted
after having considered the actual working capital needs of the Group. Both the
treasury activities and the investment policy are subject to review from time to
time.

As the deposit rate offered by licensed bank in Hong Kong is minimal, the Group
will continue, in the ordinary course of business of the Group, to use its surplus
cash to conduct treasury activities if and when opportunities arise. The Group
foresees potentially attractive return can be generated from the treasury activities.
The Group will include securities investments and money lending as its principal
activities to broaden the Group’s revenue base and achieve better Shareholders'
retum.
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No largest customer or the five largest customers for the operation of the Group,
and therefore such information were not presented.

For the vyear, the percentages of the Group's purchases for both continuing
operations and discontinued operations, attributable to its largest supplier and five
largest suppliers were 26% and 67% respectively.

Save as aforementioned, at no time during the year did a director, an associate
of a director or a shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors of the Company owned more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital) have any material interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers.

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of Association
of the Company, or the laws of Cayman Islands, which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within
the knowledge of the Directors of the Company, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float throughout the year as required under the Listing Rules.

Details of events after the reporting period are set on in note 30 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended
31 March 2014 were audited by Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu, Certified Public
Accountants. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of
the Company.

By order of the Board

Tack Fiori International Group Limited
Wang Liang
Executive Director

27 June 2014
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The Company's code on corporate governance practices was adopted by
reference to the provisions of the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (the “CG Code").

None of the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) is aware of any
information which would reasonably indicate that, during the year ended 3|
March 2014 (the “Year”), the Company is not, or was not in compliance with
the CG Code which were in force during the Year, except that the Independent
Non-executive Directors were not appointed for specific term.

In accordance with the Provision 84 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time
being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest to but
not less than one-third) shall be retired from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at an annual general meeting at least

once every three years.

The Board will continue to review and recommend such steps as appropriate in a
timely manner in order to comply with the requirements of the CG Code.

The Company has complied with the requirements for director’s securities
transactions stated in the Model Code in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Upon
specific enquiry made by the Company, all Directors of the Company have
confirmed that they have complied with the requirements as set out in the Model
Code for the Year.
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The Board currently comprises 8 members, being four Executive Directors and
four Independent Non-executive Directors. The list of Directors is set out in
the section headed “Directors’ Report” and the details of the backgrounds and
qualifications of the Directors are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors” of this annual report.

The Board assumes responsibility for the leadership and control of the Company
and its members are collectively responsible for promoting the business of the
Company by formulating the Group’s overall strategies and policies, approving
the business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group in pursuit of the
Group's overall strategy objectives and overseeing the management of the Group.
The Board has established three committees, namely the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee. The management of
the Group is responsible for the day-to-day operations of the Group, which
implements the business strategies and plans formulated and approved by the
Board.

All Directors of the Company have acted in good faith for the best interests of
the Company and the stakeholders of the Company. Other than the statutory
duties imposed on each of them, all of the Directors have exercised due care
in monitoring the corporate matters of the Company and have provided grave
concern, sufficient time and attention to all the significant issues and affairs of the
Group.
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Code provision A.2.I of the CG Code provides that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. During the period from | March 2013 to 3 November 2013, Mr. Chiu
Siu Po was the Chairman of the Board and there was no chief executive officer
appointed by the Company but the day-to-day management of the Group was
led by Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter, Vice Chairman of the Board during the period.
Following the resignations of Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter and Mr. Chiu Siu Po on
28 June 2013 and 4 November 2013 respectively, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun was
appointed as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company
and also assumed the role of the Chairman of the Board with effect from 4
November 2013. The Board believed that such arrangement would not impair
the balance of power and authority between the Chairman and chief executive
as the function of chief executive was collectively performed by all the executive
directors and not only by the Chairman. On 31 March 2014, Mr. Chung Yuk Lun
tendered his resignation as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company, following which Mr. Wang Liang, an executive director of the
Company, is responsible for the Group's business development and day-to-day
management. The Board was of the opinion that this arrangement would provide
the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow for more effective and
efficient business decision making and execution.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an annual
confirmation to the Company conceming his/her independence pursuant to the
Listing Rules. The Company considers that all the independent non-executive
Directors meet the guidelines for assessing independence as set out in Rule 3.13
of the Listing Rules and are considered to be independent.
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The number of board meetings and general meetings attended by each Director
during the Year is set out below:

FEFERFRLEERTEEARRREX
FREWN

Number of board ~ Number of general
Executive Directors meetings attended  meetings attended
yirEs HEEZEEE  HERRAS
RY RY
Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth REELE 203 3
Mr. Wang Liang (appointed on | January 2014) IREER-T-NE-A-BEZA) 6l6 0/l
Mr. Zhang Bao Yuan (appointed on 26 February 2014) RETAHE 3/4 o
(RZE-WE_A-ZT/ HEZM)
Mr. Huang Limin (appointed on 3| March 2014) EFREAE I/1 000
(RZE-MmE=A=1+—-HEZ{)
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun (Managing Director and Chief Executive Offcer) BB Btk (B E BB #1TH 7)) /11 0
(appointed on 4 November 2013 and resigned on 31 March 2014) (RZE-=F1+-FMBEZIR
RZE-WE=A=+-H#H)
Mr. Chiu Siu Po (Chairman) (resigned on 4 November 2013) BOREE(TE) 8/l Il
(R=F-=F+-AWAR{E)
Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter (Vice Chairman) (resigned on 28 June 2013) BE B L4 (512 /) 5/5 000
(RZEB-=FXAZT/\REHL)
Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley (resigned on 2| March 2014) ERELL (PN -T-WE=A-+—HEF) 12122 R
Mr. Au Wai June (resigned on 6 September 2013) MEEEERZE-=FNABEE) 8/8 I/l
Mr. Ng Jackson (resigned on 7 April 2013) REEEER-_T-ZEMA+ARE) 00 010
Number of board ~ Number of general
Independent Non-Executive Directors meetings attended  meetings attended
BIFHGTES HEESEEE  HRREAE
RY RY
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert DA IE B+ 20123 M3
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond BEREE 19/23 33
Mr. Robert James laia I Robert James laia Il % 4 923 33
Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora WHFELL 10123 23
Mr. Miu H, Frank BHRs 12723 33

Save for regular board meetings held during the Year, meetings of the Directors
were held to discuss and transact other special businesses. The Board members
are provided with appropriate and sufficient information in a timely manner to
keep abreast of the Group’s latest developments. All businesses transacted at the
board meetings are properly documented and recorded.

24

GRAFERTCEZERREZIN
EZENMBTERTHREEE MR
FH-EFERECERNGEEALR
RZER EREEBASEZHNE
EER - -MEREZCEREENER
HEZEFR R -



In compliance with the requirement set out in new code provision A.5.6 of the
CG Code, the Company adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) on 30 August 2013 which sets out its approach to achieve diversity on
the Board with a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development of
the Company.

The Company seeks to achieve Board diversity through the consideration
of a number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service. The Company will also take into account factors based on its

own business model and specific needs from time to time.

Each newly appointed Director receives a comprehensive and formal induction
to ensure that he/she has an appropriate understanding of (i) the business and
operations of the Group; (i) his/her responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements; (iii) the corporate governance
code of the Company and (iv) the Model Code.

Directors are continually updated on developments in the statutory and
regulatory regime and the business environment to facilitate the discharge of their
responsibilities. Continuing briefing and professional development for directors
will be arranged at the expenses of the Company whenever necessary. The
Directors are committed to complying with code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code
on Directors' training. All Directors have participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and provided
their training records for the Year to the Company.
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The Company has established a remuneration committee (the “Remuneration
Committee”) in August 201 1. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee are to make recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors and members of the senior
management of the Company and to determine the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and members of the senior management of
the Company. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee have
been posted on the website of the Company.

The Remuneration Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive
director. The members of the Remuneration Committee comprise two
independent non-executive Directors and one executive Director.

The Remuneration Committee held four meetings during the Year. Details of the
attendance of the committee members are as follows:

ARAER-ZE——FN\NARUFHZ
Ee((¥MEEE) -FMZEazx
ERERUARABREZRARAR
REEERE2BTFM cRRRRER
ETERNES YETERATES
RARRRREREKE 2 FEFMAES -
FTHZEE v HEEECEIRAAA
AL

FHMZEe@m—RBUNFNTESEE
IR -FHEEEKNERBAMABIUIF
BTESK—RATES-

THRESRAFEERTOREE
REEMEZHEHBENT

Committee Members Attendance @ZEEERE i E R
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (Chairman) 44 ESBEREE(EE) 4/4
Mr. Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth 44 REEEEMNR-_F-=F 4/4
(appointed on 6 September 2013) NARNBEZE)
Mr. Robert James laia Il 4/4  Robert James laia Il £ & 4/4
Mr. Au Wai June (resigned on 6 September 2013) 00 MEBEEMR-_ZT—= 0/0
NARBEE)

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during the Year
included, amongst other things, the following:

. reviewing and making recommendations on the remuneration packages of
the executive Directors; and

. reviewing and determining the remuneration of the executive Director for
the Year.
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The Company has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) in March 2012. The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a regular basis and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any proposed change and to review
the board diversity policy of the Company and review the measurable objectives
that the Board has set for implementing such policy and the progress on achieving
the objectives. The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
posted on the website of the Company.

The Nomination Committee is chaired by an independent non-executive director.
The members of the Nomination Committee comprise three independent non-
executive Directors.

The Nomination Committee held four meetings during the Year. Details of the
attendance of the committee members are as follows:
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ARAIERZE—ZF=AKUREE
Ee((REZBg))-RAZEBe 2T
ZRENTEHENESSLRE AR
FARBRERT AHRER) B
THRZEHNEFERUSE  BF
ARRAZEZEMBZ LILHE LRk
HEFERETRIRRAE 2T E
EERERERZER RAZEQY
BESECEIRARA B -

REAZESH—RBUFRPTESEL
TR -REZEENEBE-ZRBIUN
BITES-

REZEENAFEEETHNRER
ZEgRBZHFEAENT

Committee Members Attendance ZEEEBRE &
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert (Chairman) 44 REREE LT (FE) 414
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond 44  ESEBREE 4/4
Mr. Robert James laia Il 4/4  Robert James laia Il £ & 4/4

The major work performed by the Nomination Committee during the Year
included, amongst other things, the following:

. proposing revision of the terms of the reference of the Nomination
Committee and adoption of board diversity policy; and

. considering and making recommendations to the Board for the
appointment of Directors.
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The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”)
in August 201 |. The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee are to
review the relationship with the auditors of the Company; review the financial
information of the Group and oversee the Group's financial reporting system
and internal control procedures. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee
have been posted on the website of the Company.

The members of the Audit Committee comprise three independent non-
executive Directors and one of whom has the appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management expertise.

ARAER-_E——FN\ARUERZZ
Ee((BERZEBg)) -ERZBazx
ERERBATERD AR ZBE:
ENARB HBENRERNEEHR
BHREFVELASEERF -BRZE
EYBESECEHRARAMEE -

ERZEeNERE= %ﬁi#ﬂ -
AP -2 BABREEXERAER
FEAEMBERERME

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the Year. Details of the  BRZZEERAFE L H1 Fﬂ N
attendance of the committee members are as follows: ZEENEZHEFBOT

Committee Members Attendance @ZEEERE HE =
Mr. Yau Yan Ming, Raymond (Chairman) 22 HEREE(EE) 212
Dr. Leung Shiu Ki, Albert 22 RKEFL 22
Mr. Robert James laia | 212 Robert James laia Il /¢ 4 212

The major work performed by the Audit Committee during the Year included,

amongst other things, the following;

*  reviewing the interim results of the Group for the six months ended 30
September 2013; and

. reviewing the annual results of the Group for the financial year ended 3|
March 2014 with the conclusion that the preparations of such results have
been complied with the applicable accounting standards.

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Cheng Pui Yee who is a full time
employee of the Company who has day-to-day knowledge of the Company.
This Company Secretary has taken no less than |5 hours of relevant professional

training during the Year.
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The Audit Committee is responsible for considering the appointment of
the external auditor and reviewing any non-audit services performed by the
external auditor. During the year, the fee for audit and non-audit services to the
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TERERMS

ERZBEREERIBERAMIES
Rt INERZ SRR IR (2 (E I3 FIR B AR T
WARFEE - KAFINEZ AR M2 4%

Company's external auditors, for the provision of services as follows: YBRFERBBRBERMT -
HK$'000
FET
Audit services %R 1,650

Non-audit services (including review of interim report ERERB

and financial information) (EREEHPHRE RMBER) 454
2,104
The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation of the  EEWABEERFEAER 2 HBKHRE -

financial statements of the Group. The responsibilities of the Directors and
Auditor are set out on pages 32 to 33 of this Annual Report.

The Board is responsible to ensure that an adequate system of internal control is
maintained within the Group, and to review its effectiveness through the Audit
Committee. The internal control systems are designed to meet the Group'’s
particular needs and the risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can
only provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or
loss and to manage, but not to eliminate, risks of failure in achieving the Group’
s objectives. Practicable and effective control systems and procedures have been
implemented by the Group to enhance internal control on an ongoing basis.
The Board, through the Audit Committee, assessed effectiveness of the Group's
system of internal control.
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The Company regards high quality reporting as an essential element in building
successful relationships with its shareholders. The Company always endeavour
to provide relevant information to existing and potential investors, not only to
comply with the different requirements in force but also to enhance transparency
and communications with shareholders and the investing public. Regular and
publicly available disclosures about important issues, including performance,
fundamental business strategy, governance and the management of risk are made
through various channels:

*  the Company's annual general meeting;

. interim and annual results announcements published on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange;

. interim and annual reports of the Company delivered to all shareholders;

¢ timely update of the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company;
. meeting with Shareholders;
. regular circulars and letters to Shareholders; and

. prompt news releases and announcements regarding major corporate
actions and business initiatives.

The Company maintains a website at www.tackfiori.com where the Company's
announcements, circulars, notices, financial reports, business developments, press
releases and other information are posted.

The Company is committed to ensuring that it is in full compliance with
disclosure obligations stipulated under the Listing Rules and other applicable laws
and regulations, and that all shareholders and potential investors have an equal
opportunity to receive and obtain externally available information that is released
by the Group.

The Company always welcome shareholders’ views and input. Shareholders and
other stakeholders may at any time address their concems to the Company by
mail or email. The contact details are set out in the corporate information on
pages 2 to 3 of this Annual Report.

30

ARARRRERZME R ERRKY
BUYBMERZEBRLZ -ARA—HES
AREREBEEREERBEHEER T
ENGRBERZBRRATE  TRER
RERERMERRREARREEZ
BR ALDANMERERE THRA
FREEAEE BRRA ELXEK
R BEoREBRERZER

. ARABRTAFAE:

+ RARARBRABUEEEDHR
EERERM

¢ FEREARATHERFERETEE
BR

© BEREHBRARARARBE
- BEEREE:
© EHRBRBLBREEG R

c IPBRBRIBZAFEPREE
HRZHMERRE DM -

KA 7 FRAE D A $ i wwwiackfioricom
EHARAZA M BER - BE  HBR
L EBREE VERBEKEMER-

ARRABHEREEET LRI LE
tERAPI AR AZKERL M
PRERERBEREEVEEHRKS -
ESRRSAKREHNAH 2ER -

AARARBDRRREEERHRLER -
BRRRE M B AR BER R AR F
BFHEXNSER RUKS2BIFR-
BEHBENAFRELEIAZARER -



Convening an extraordinary general meeting by shareholders

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association of the Company, any one
or more members holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less
than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of
voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by
written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the Company, to require an
extraordinary general meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two (2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board of the company
secretary at the Company's principal office in Hong Kong at Room 2201, 22/F,
Kwan Chart Tower, No. 6 Tonnochy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, specifying
the shareholding information of the shareholder, his/her contact details and the
proposal he/she intends to put forward at general meeting regarding any specified

transaction/business and its supporting documents.

There is no change in the Company’s constitutional documents during the Year.
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Deloitte.
=20

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Tack Fiori International
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to
as the “Group”) set out on pages 34 to 109, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the "HKICPA”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the HKICPA. Those standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2014, and of the Group’s loss
and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 June 2014
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heEmaRkHEME2ENS

&=

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
“2-MmF —E-=f
No’ges HK$’000 HK$'000
Pt & TER FET
(restated)
(Z5)
Continuing operations HELEXB
Turnover E S 7 22,469 25,149
Cost of sales HE AR (13,348) (19,039)
Gross profit EF 9,121 6,110
Change in fair value of held-for-trading #H{EEERE 2 A FEE
investments 14,602 (8,676)
23723 (2,566)
Other income and gain H A WA R g 8 17,805 286
Selling and distribution costs HE N DA (39,339) (39,936)
Administrative and other operating THREMEERST
expenses (66,589) (67,621)
Impairment on property, plant mE BERERERE
and equipment 9 (6,135) -
Loss before taxation bR A B 18 10 (70,535) (109,837)
Income tax kST H (35) B
Loss from continuing operations & B 4 R 2 TR e (70,570) (109,837)
Discontinued operations BRIEER
Loss from discontinued operations BRIEEBER 12 (40,234) (16,150)
Loss for the year AEEER (110,804) (125,987)
Other comprehensive income Rerge @D BEERR
that may be reclassified subsequently ~— E b 2 H M :
to profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translations ~ B EFTELE R =5 479 65
Reclassification of translation reserve to i & I B A Bl E# 2 8
profit or loss upon disposal nEREEZER
of subsidiaries 169 =
648 65
Total comprehensive expense AFEELHRAY BT
for the year (110,156) (125922)
Loss for the year attributable to: UATALTREAREZER:
Owners of the Company ARE)ER A
— Continuing operations —REREER (70,570) (109,837)
— Discontinued operations —BRIEER (40,234) (16,150)
(110,804) (125,987)
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mEBE

For the year ended 31 March 2014 = =

&Hﬂﬂ%@ﬂ&ﬁ‘é%ﬁ

—HE=A=1+—-RAL%E

(Amounts expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (1A 78 7T & B fir)

2014 2013
—E-DmF —B—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ks THERT TET
(restated)
(E5)
Total comprehensive expense for MTATEGAEFEZ2ARY
the year attributable to: B
Owners of the Company VIN/NEIRZ =N
— Continuing operations —RBEREEK (69,975) (109,701)
— Discontinued operations —BRIEXH (40,181) (16,221)
(110,156) (125922)
LOSS PER SHARE BRER 16
From continuing and discontinued RABERENE R FEB
operations
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) — EARREE (EL) (6.50) (1541)
From continuing operations RABBRE X
— Basic and diluted (HK cents) —EA &%ﬁ BRI (4.14) (1343)
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e MR R

Asat31March 2014 R—E—MFE=F=1+—H

2014 2013
—E-NE —T—=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Bt & TERT FET
Non-current assets F(RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME¥E - BE KRG 17 1,220 40,093
Trademark gz 18 2,188 2313
Rental deposits Hekse 1,223 6,334
4,631 48,740
Current assets RBEE
Inventories 7E 19 20,767 35217
Trade and other receivables EWE S R EMZIE 20 6,888 11930
Held-for-trading investments REEERE 21 — 29,480
Bank balances and cash WITHEH MRS 22 134,515 52,257
162,170 128,884
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables ENEBSREMZTE 23(a) 12,696 35,218
Provision B 23(b) 5,531 =
18,227 35218
Net current assets REHEERE 143,943 93,666
Net assets EERE 148,574 142,406
Capital and reserves R A % fik 4
Share capital % 7~ 24 21,444 ['1,455
Reserves i 127,130 130,95
Total equity attributable to owners FRRBEEARLEZAH
of the Company 148,574 142,406

FURIVBEZGEVBERREEEZS
ER_E-—NMFEFAB-_T+ LB ERRK
BT THTIATREEE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 34 to 109 were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 June 2014 and are signed on
its behalf by:

Wang Liang Chan Chak Kai, Kenneth
IR R 2 s
Director Director
EFE EF
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MEEREE R

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE T —NFE=A=+—HILtFE

Share Contributed Other
Share Share options surplus  Translation reserve Accumulated
capital  premium reserve  (Note ) reserve  (Note 2) losses Total
BRE SAEBH Hift e

REx RHRE e (WED) BERE (WE) ZRHER s
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKF000  HKF000  HKF000  HKF000  HK$O000
TExT FTAT TExXL TFTEx FTET FEx  FTET  TE=nR

At | April 2012 RZE——FWmA—H 318,201 660,455 1,735 167,780 593 = (984,381) 164,383
Loss for the year XEEBR - - - - - - (125987)  (125987)
Other comprehensive income arising from 128 7 [ § ZBFTE &
exchange differences on translations Hi2mEKE = = = = 65 = = 65
Total comprehensive income (expense) 7R [ 2 [ Uk 25
for the year (X))@ - - - - 65 - (125987) (125922
Capital reduction (Note 24a) BARHA (13 24a) (311.837) - - - - - 311,837 -
Issue of shares under rights issue BEERBEITRG
(Note 24b) (B 5E240) 3,182 76,368 - - - - = 79,550
Issue of shares under placement BERERITRG
(Note 24c) (P33 24c) 1273 9,546 - - - = = 10819
Transaction costs attributable to issue BIIROEER S
of shares N - (4009) - - - - - (4009)
Issue of shares upon exercise of TEERERET
share options (Note 24d) RR 17 (Pl = 24d) 636 6,046 2.571) - - 2571 = 6,682
Recognition of equity-settled R ARIE S E ARG
share-based payments (Note 26) BE (M) = = 10903 = = = = 10903
At 31 March 2013 R-ZE—=%=8A=+—H 1,455 748,406 10,067 167,780 658 2571 (798,531) 142,406
Loss for the year AFEEER - - - - - - (l10804) (110,804
Other comprehensive income arising from 12 & 7 [E 5§ Z 5 E 4
exchange differences on translations Ef2EKE - - - - 479 - = 479
Reclassification of translation reserve to 5 & [ B 72 B %
profit or loss upon disposal of subsidiaries B ¥ N FEHERKETBH - - = = 169 = - 169
Total comprehensive income (expense) AN 2 I E
for the year (X))@ - - - - 648 - (I10804)  (I10,I56)
Issue of shares under placement BEEERITRG
(Note 24g) (Fif 5k 24g) 8,844 98,300 - - - - - 107,144
Transaction costs attributable to issue BEARNEERS
of shares (%N - (3,588) - - - - - (3,588)
Issue of shares upon exercise of TR ERER T
share options (Note 24f) AR 17 (B 35 24f) 1,145 6,233 (2,947) = = 2,947 - 7378
Recognition of equity-settled HRARIE L E AR M
share-based payments (Note 26) RER AR FE28) - - 5390 - - - - 5,390
Lapse of equity-settled share options DA RR B 5 BB AR A SR A - - (12,510 - - - 12,510 -
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE=RA=1+—H 21,444 849,351 - 167,780 1,306 5518  (896,825) 148,574
Notes: B 5
(1) The contributed surplus represents the difference between nominal value of the shares of () BABRBEALAMUBHBARRNEE
subsidiaries acquired by the Company and the nominal value of the shares of the Company BARNABRBER TS _FHACEHET
issued for the acquisition pursuant to the reorganisation in April 2002, WHEREITIROEBE L EZRE -
(2)  The other reserve represents the release of share options expenses from share options Q HitFEBEEEREETELAEERERES
reserve upon exercise of share options. oz BIRIER = o
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

2014 2013
“E-mE —F-=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
g TER FET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES KExR
Loss for the year AEEER (110,804) (125,987)
Adjustments for: BNSNIEEELFE
[ncome tax FTig®t 35 =
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - -BELRRBHE
equipment 7,222 7483
Amortisation of trademark EZE 125 [25
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories FERO)EE (770) 496
White back of trade and other payables BRESHREMFIBER (17,321) (1,753)
Write-off of deposits R e W 150 1479
Share-based payments expenses PARR D R ERE 2 5 R 2 5,390 10,903
Change in fair value of held-for-trading RIEEEREC AT EEZY
investments (14,602) 8,676
Interest income M EWA (7) (123)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERRBZER
equipment 7213 416
Provision on onerous contracts ZEENEE 5531 -
Impairment of property, plant and WE BERRERE
equipment 15,123 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEWNBARZEE 25 602 -
Operating cash flows before movements LEEREPRLRERERE
in working capital (102,113) (98,285)
Decrease (increase) in inventories FERALOGEM 13,898 (309)
Decrease (increase) in rental deposit paid ENEeEERDGEM) 5111 (6,334
Decrease in trade and other receivables FEWE 5 N E th 2B R D 873 9,358
Decrease (increase) in held-for-trading BIEEERERD(EM)
investments 44,082 (38,156)
(Decrease) increase in trade and other payables & & 5 I £ ZVIE CFi ) £ AN (3,157) 2,327
Net cash used in operations REEKAR G F58 (41,306) (131,399)
Income tax paid ERMEHR (39) -
NET CASH USED IN OPERATING KEXBHMAREFE
ACTIVITIES (41,341) (131,399)
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE T —NFE=A=+—HILtFE

2014 2013
—E-NEF —Z2—=
Notes HK$'000 HK$000
g THT TET
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REEH
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEYE BEEXE (2,400) (33,798)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE BEIRELZ
and equipment g RE 4,500 -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE AR 25 10,403 —
Settlement of loans receivable EUWE TR - 3270
Interest received B W F 8 7 123
NET CASH FROM (USED IN) INVESTING ~ REZFEFRES(FTB)RELFE
ACTIVITIES 12,510 (30,405)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEEE
Proceeds from placement of shares RERN < MERE 107,144 10819
Proceeds from exercise of share options TEERE 2 FTB A 7,378 6,682
Proceeds from right issues W 2 Fri5 5008 - 79,550
Transaction costs attributable to issue BORMHEIERZKRA
of shares (3,588) (4,009)
NET CASH FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES RIS EEIfE RS TE 110,934 93,042
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH ReERREEEWEMORL)
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS B 82,103 (68,762)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT N HEERBELZEY
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 52,257 121,183
EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE Exganogg
RATE CHANGES 155 (164)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRVESRESZEY
AT END OF THE YEAR, REPRESENTED REBITESRRAE
BY BANK BALANCES AND CASH 134,515 52,257
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I.  GENERAL

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability and
its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The addresses of the registered office and principal place of

business of the Company are disclosed in the corporate information section

of the annual report.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding, The Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in apparel retail
business in the People's Republic of China (the "PRC") and securities trading

and investments business in Hong Kong.

The Group had discontinued (i) the luxury goods and accessories retail
business, (ii) salon and beauty services business and (iii) pharmacy and
healthcare product retail business in the current year (see notes 12 and
25). The presentation of continuing operations and discontinued operations
in the current year has resulted in a re-presentation of the corresponding
comparative figures shown for the consolidated statement of profit or loss

and other comprehensive income and related notes to the consolidated

financial statements.

The presentation currency of the consolidated financial statements is
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$"). For the convenience of the consolidated
financial statements users, the results and financial position of the Group

are presented in HK$ as the Company's shares are listed on the Stock

Exchange.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE T —NFE=A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(the "HKICPA™).

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
HKFRS | | Joint Arrangements
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

Amendments to HKFRS 10,  Consolidated Financial Statements,
and HKFRS |1 and Joint Arrangements Disclosure of Interest
HKFRS 12 in Other Entities: Transition Guidance

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKAS 19 (as revised in 201 1)  Employee Benefits

HKAS 28 (as revised in 201 1) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

Amendments to HKFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets
and Financial Liabilities

Presentation of ltems of Other
Comprehensive Income

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2009-201 | Cycle

Amendments to HKAS |

Amendments to HKFRSs

HK(IFRIC)-INT 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase

of a Surface Mine

Except as described below, the application of the other new and revised
HKFRSs in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial performance and position for the current and prior years and/or
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

The Group has applied Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS")
|3 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS |3 establishes a single source
of guidance for, and disclosures about, fair value measurements. The scope
of HKFRS 13 is broad: the fair value measurement requirements of HKFRS
I3 apply to both financial instrument items and non-financial instrument
items for which other HKFRSs require or permit fair value measurements
and disclosures about fair value measurements, except for share-based
payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based
Payment, leasing transactions that are within the scope of Hong Kong
Accounting Standard ("HKAS") 17 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value (e.g. net realisable value

for the purposes of measuring inventories or value in use for impairment

assessment purposes).

HKFRS 13 defines the fair value of an asset as the price that would be
received to sell an asset (or paid to transfer a liability, in the case of
determining the fair value of a liability) in an orderly transaction in the
principal (or most advantageous) market at the measurement date under
current market conditions. Fair value under HKFRS 13 is an exit price
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using

another valuation technique. Also, HKFRS 13 includes extensive disclosure

requirements.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE T —NFE=A=+—HILtFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement (Continued)

HKFRS 13 requires prospective application. Other than the additional
disclosures, the application of HKFRS |3 has not had any material impact on

the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS | “Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive
Income”

The amendments to HKAS | introduce a new terminology for the
statement of comprehensive income and income statement. Under
the amendments to HKAS |, a “statement of comprehensive income”
is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income”. “Income statement” is renamed as a “statement of profit or loss".
The amendments to HKAS | retain the option to present profit or loss and
other comprehensive income in either a single statement or in two separate
but consecutive statements.

However, the amendments to HKAS | require additional disclosures to
be made in the other comprehensive section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories: (a) items that will
not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss; and (b) items that may
be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income is required to be
allocated on the same basis — the amendments do not change the existing
option to present items of other comprehensive income either before tax
or net of tax. The amendments have been applied retrospectively, and
hence the presentation of items of other comprehensive income has been

modified to reflect the changes.
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2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. EHRHI R LI E BB R
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued) 4| ([’é,ﬁﬁ\;ﬁ%ﬁﬂ:,ﬁlﬁ\uj) (&)
New and revised HKFRSs issued but not yet effective 2 28 ff {8 Z R R

EBMK iﬁ E'J
The Group has not early applied the following new and revised HKFRSs that REBY K TE FEATIERME
has been issued but are not yet effective: WMARERZFE] REIETBEMB
wEER
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 and BEMBRERAEIRR BEHBREE
and HKFRS 7 transition disclosures’ ERMBREEAEIR 2o cEAM
(B3T%) EHAHR
RERE
Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment entities' EEMBREEAZ 0% REER
HKFRS 12 and HKAS 27 ERUBREEAS R
RERE AR
(g5 %)
Amendments to HKFRS | | Accounting for acquisition of interests in ERAMBRSENE Y WBRoERER
joint operations® (BATF) LEHREN A
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments’ BRMBRSEAEIS BHIA
HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts® BROBASEAS 4 EEELERES
Amendments to HKAS 16 Clarification of acceptable methods of EROUHENZ ICERER EBEURXIME
and HKAS 38 depreciation and amortisation® SHENERR(ETR)  REHNE
Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined benefit plans: employees BRESRNZ 9% (BIR) TERAGHE:
contributions? EEH
Amendments to HKAS 32 Offsetting financial assets and ERGHENENRBIR) Ko 5@
financial liabilities' L
Amendments to HKAS 36 Recoverable amount disclosures for BREHERE R (BTAR) FHBEETLND
non-financial assets' SHIRE
Amendments to HKAS 39 Novation of derivatives and continuation BRGHERNEIR(BAR) (TEIAERR
of hedge accounting' ?ﬂﬁﬂl Bl
} |
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BROBASEN(EIA) FARBREEY
HKFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle* “2-%%%
—R-_FEH
2EEE
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to BENBRSEN(BIA) FAMBREEY
HKFRSs 201 1-2013 Cycle? :2——%
“E--ERH
LERE
HK(IFRIC)-INT 21 Levies' Er(ARRBRERE  HE
ZEQ)-REAUN
Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after | January 2014. R_E—ME-F-AHEERKBZ
S BRER -
3 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after | July 2014 2 g;?ﬁﬁ:}g ?t A—HgHEERKZ
> Available for application — the mandatory effective date will be determined when the 3 EEI%i\J/T&“ B —atltERBBMERE R
outstanding phases of HKFRS 9 are finalised. Eﬁﬁﬁiﬁggﬁg RRAEIRZMFRERR
i Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | July 2014, with limited exceptions. 4 7%?’:{55 %% F+A-—BHSEERBZ
FEHMER fﬁ‘ﬁ’l@ﬂ?ﬂ%l\
g Effective for first annual HKFRS financial statements beginning on or after | January s RZTE—5R —BRHEERBZ
2016. E@i gﬁ/%ﬁﬂ%#ﬁi/ﬂwﬁﬂ%i&i%
/X o
¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2016, with earlier application 8 R-ZZT—R —AEEHRZ
permitted. FEBBER T}miﬁﬁﬁ
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduces new requirements for the classification
and measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended
in 2010 to include the requirements for the classification and measurement
of financial liabilities and for derecognition, and further amended in 2013 to
include the new requirements for hedge accounting.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9 are described as follows:

*  All recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are subsequently
measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically, debt investments
that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the
contractual cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding
are generally measured at amortised cost at the end of subsequent
accounting periods. All other debt investments and equity investments
are measured at their fair values at the end of subsequent reporting
periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9, entities may make an irrevocable
election to present subsequent changes in the fair value of an equity
investment (that is not held for trading) in other comprehensive
income, with only dividend income generally recognised in profit or

loss.

2.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (Continued)
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

With regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would
create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in
fair value of financial liabilities attributable to changes in the financial
liabilities” credit risk are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the change in the fair value of
the financial liability designated as fair value through profit or loss was

presented in profit or loss.

Based on the Group's financial instruments as at 31 March 2014, the
directors anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in the future will have
no significant impact on the amounts reported in respect of the Group's
financial assets and financial liabilities.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other
new and revised HKFRSs will have no matenial impact on the consolidated
financial statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and
by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical
cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair
values, as explained in the accounting policies set out below. Historical cost
is generally based on fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants
at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly
observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the
characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the asset or liability at the
measurement date. Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes
in these consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the scope of
HKFRS 2, leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,

such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in HKAS 36.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs
to the fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

* Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the
measurement date;

*  Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level I, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

*  Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below:

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of
the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:

*  has power over the investee;

* is exposed, or has rights, to variable returmns from its involvement with
the investee; and

*  has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and

circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three
elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains control
until the date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group's

accounting policies.

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated
in full on consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests in existing subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of or dissolves a subsidiary, a gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value
of any retained interest and (i) the previous carrying amount of the assets
(including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interests. All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the
fair value on initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS
39, when applicable, the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an

associate or a joint venture,
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or
receivable and represents amounts receivable for goods sold and services
provided in the normal course of business, net of discounts and sales related
taxes.

Revenue from sale of goods is recognised when the goods are delivered and
titles have passed, at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

*  the Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards
of ownership of the goods;

*  the Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the
degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over
the goods sold;

*  the amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

* it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the
transaction will flow to the Group; and

*  the costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can
be measured reliably.

Service income is recognised when services are provided.

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that
the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the amount of income
can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by
reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholders'

rights to receive payment have been established.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately,
including trademark, are carried at costs less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for intangible assets with finite
useful lives is recognised on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful
lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at
the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no future economic
benefits are expected from use or disposal. Gains or losses arising from
derecognition of an intangible asset are measured at the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are

recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and

subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of items of property,
plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is

recognised in profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All

other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term. Contingent rents arising under operating leases

are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating
leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line

basis.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the functional currency of that entity
(foreign currencies) are recorded in the respective functional currency
(i.e. the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates) at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period, monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at
that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in
foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when

the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in

terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on
the retranslation of monetary items, are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation
of non-monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss
for the period except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly

in other comprehensive income, in which cases, the exchange differences

are also recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the year. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity under the heading of translation reserve. On the
disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal of the Group’s entire interest
in a foreign operation, or a disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary
that includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an interest in a joint
arrangement or an associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the

owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets are

substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they are incurred.

Retirement benefits costs

Payments to state-managed retirement benefit scheme and the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme which are defined contribution plans are recognised
as expenses when employees have rendered service entitling them to the
contributions.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and

deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from “loss before taxation” as reported in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income because it
excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the

taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments are only recognised to the extent that it is probable
that there will be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in

the foreseeable future.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of the
reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset
to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are recognised
in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost of
inventories are calculated using the weighted average method. Net realisable
value represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated
costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the consolidated
statement of financial position when a group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value.
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of
financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition
of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets

The Group's financial assets are classified into one of the two categories,
including financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") and
loans and receivables. The classification depends on the nature and purpose
of the financial assets and is determined at the time of initial recognition.
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and
derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the

time frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial asset and of allocating interest income over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash receipts (including all fees and points paid or received that form
an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial

recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt

instruments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets at FV'TPL

Financial assets are classified as FVTPL when the financial assets is either held
for trading or it is designated as at FVTPL on initial recognition.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

* it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near
term; or

e itis a part of an identified portfolio of financial instruments that the
Group manages together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

* it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value arising from remeasurement recognised directly in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or
loss excludes any dividend earned on the financial assets and is disclosed as
separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Subsequent
to initial recognition, loans and receivables (including trade and other
receivables and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any identified impairment losses (see
accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators
of impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are
considered to be impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result
of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For all financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

*  significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

*  breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or

principal payments; or

* it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or

financial re-organisation.

For certain categories of financial asset, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment
for a portfolio of receivables could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed payments in the
portfolio past the average credit period, observable changes in national or
local economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment
loss recognised is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the

financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised in
profit or loss. When a trade debtor is considered uncollectible, it is written
off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be
related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was
recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date
the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would
have been had the impairment not been recognised.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability instrument

and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments
issued by the Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Rights Issue

Rights issued by the Company for issuing a fixed number of the Company’s
equity instruments in exchange of a fixed number amount of any currency
are equity instruments if the Company offers the rights pro rata to all of its
existing owners of ordinary shares of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost
of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and
other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount
on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.

Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities including trade and other payables are subsequently

measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method.

Derecognition
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or expire. The difference
between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the
consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment losses on tangible and intangible assets

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives to
determine whether there is any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if
any.

When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and consistent basis of
allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs to sell and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating unit) is estimated
to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a
cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of
the asset (or cash-generating unit) is increased to the revised estimate of
its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in
profit or loss.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payment transactions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

Share options granted to employees and consultants providing similar

services as employees

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value
of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period/recognised as an expense in full at the grant
date when the share options granted vest immediately on the same date,

with a corresponding increase in equity (share options reserve).

At the end of the reporting period, the Group revises its estimates of
the number of options that are expected to ultimately vest. The impact
of the revision of the original estimates during the vesting period, if any,
is recognised in profit or loss such that the cumulative expense reflects
the revised estimated, with a corresponding adjustment to share options

reserve.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously recognised in
share options reserve will be transferred to other reserve. When the share
options are forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at the

expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share options reserve will

be transferred to accumulated losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Group will be
required to settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the
consideration required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding
the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of money is material).

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are recognised and
measured as provisions. An onerous contract is considered to exist where
the Group has a contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting the
obligations under the contract exceed the economic benefits expected to
be received from the contract.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which are described
in note 3, the directors of the Company are required to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following is the key assumption concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period,
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year.
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (Continued)
Allowances for inventories

The management of the Group reviews an aging analysis at the end
of the reporting period and makes allowance for obsolete and slow-
moving inventory items identified that are no longer suitable for sale. The
management estimates the net realisable value for such finished goods based
primarily on the latest invoice prices and current market conditions. The
Group carries out an inventory review at the end of the reporting period
and makes allowance for obsolete items.

If the market condition was to deteriorate, resulting in a lower net realisable

value for such finished goods, additional allowances may be required.

CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will
be able to continue as a going concern while maximising the return to
shareholder through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The
Group's overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to owners
of the Company, comprising issued share capital, reserves and accumulated
losses.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure on a regular
basis. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and
the risks associate with each class of capital. Based on recommendations of
the directors, the Group will balance its overall capital structure through the

payment of dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new debt.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS ,E\ji%:[ =l
Categories of financial instruments M TEZER
2014 2013
—F-NF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT FETT
Financial assets BBEE
Held-for-trading investments BIEEBERE - 29,480
Loans and receivables (including cashand ~ EHXREKRFIEBE(RRERE K
cash equivalents) BEZEEY) 136,964 58,410
136,964 87,890
Financial liabilities WBaE
Amortised costs B S R R 12,171 35,128

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include rental deposits, held-for-
trading investments, trade and other receivables, bank balances and cash and
trade and other payables. Details of the financial instruments are disclosed
in the respective notes. The risks associated with these financial instruments
are set out below. The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and effective

manner.

Market risk

Currency risk

The group entities collects most of its revenue and incurs most of the
expenditures in their respective functional currencies. The directors of
the Company consider that the Group's foreign currency exchange risk
is insignificant (except bank balances) as the majority of the Group's
transactions are denominated in functional currency of each individual group
entity.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy.
However, the management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) BMEIR®E)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued) HEEBEEEERBEKE)
Market risk (Continued) HEE (&)
Currency risk (Continued) EEERE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency denominated bank RBERAR AEENIEEEL
balances at the end of reporting period are as follows: RITHEBREENT :
2014 2013
—F-NFE —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAET
HK$ AT | 7,021
Renminbi (“RMB") ARBITARES]) 5 98
Sensitivity analysis SRS 9 i
The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% increase and TRHNEEMBEEH BT E

decrease in the functional currency of each group entity against relevant
foreign currencies and all other variables were held constant. 5% is the
sensitivity rate used which represents management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis
includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items,
and adjusts their translation at the end of the reporting period for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Market risk (Continued)

Currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis (Continued)

A positive number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss for the year
where the relevant foreign currencies strengthens 5% against the functional
currency of each group entity. For a 5% weakening of the relevant foreign
currencies against the functional currency of each group entity, there would
be an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss for the year and the

balances below would be negative.

MBIR®
HERREBERRBEE)
mEEE (%)

EEmE @)

BREN (&)
TREBRTERHEINELEEE
BB ZYAEERITESSE - BHUK
FEBRBREBBRBD - i BN
REGEERZNEEERE%
AERAEERBRRAEBERERS R
HR2EE MIEXAELEGEE
REH-

2014 2013
“E-NE —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET

Decrease in post-tax loss for the year AEERTIZEERD
Impact of HK$ against RMB BTREARBZYE = 351
Impact of RMB against HK$ ARBHETZZE - 5

Interest rate risk
The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-

rate bank balances.

The Group currently does not have interest rate hedging policy. However,
the management will consider hedging significant interest rate exposure

should the need arise.
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the exposure
to interest rates for variable rate bank balances at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the variable rate bank balances
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the
whole year. A 50 basis point (2013: 50 basis points) increase or decrease
is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management
personnel and represents management’s assessment of the reasonably
possible change in interest rates. If interest rate increases/decreases by the
aforesaid basis point, and all other variables were held constant, the Group's
post-tax loss for the year ended 3| March 2014 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$668,000 (2013: post-tax loss decrease/increase by

HK$215,000).

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investments in held-
for trading listed securities. The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. The Group’s
equity price risk is mainly concentrated on securities listed on the Stock
Exchange. In addition, the directors are responsible to monitor the price risk.
For sensitivity analysis purpose, the sensitivity rate is 15% in current year as a

result of the volatile financial market.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure
for equity price risks at the end of reporting period. If the prices of the
respective equity instruments had been 5% higher/lower and all other
variables were held constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 31 March
2013 would decrease/increase by approximately HK$4,422,000 as a result

of the changes in fair value of held-for-trading investments.

In the management’s opinion, the sensitivity analysis was unrepresentative of
the inherent equity price risk as the year end exposure did not reflect the

exposure during the year,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Financial risk management objectives and policies (Continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation by
the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the respective
recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the Group has
delegated a team responsible for follow-up action to recover overdue
debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual trade and other receivables as set out in note 20 at the end of the
reporting period to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of the Company consider
that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The Group has no significant concertration of credit risk, with exposure
spread over a large number of counterparties. Apparell retail sales and
salon and beauty services provided are settled in either cash or via credit
cards issued by banks or other financial insitutions. The credit risk on liquid
funds and credit card sales are limited because the counterparties are either
banks or other financial institutions with high credit ranking assigned by
credit-rating agencies, or state-owned banks. Certain sales of apparels are
made through shops in shopping malls and department stores and all cash
and credit cards payments from customers are received by shopping malls
and department stores on behalf of the Group. The credit risk on trade
receivables from those shopping malls and department stores are limited
because all shopping malls and department stores have good repayment
record.

Liquidity risk

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group monitors and maintains
a level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations
in cash flows. As at 31 March 2014 and 2013, all the financial liabilities are
repayable on demand or within 3 months after the end of the reporting
period. All the financial liabilities are non- interest bearing,
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6. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

Fair value measurements

(i) Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that

are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Certain Group's financial assets and financial liabilities are measured at
fair value at the end of each reporting period. The fair values of these
financial assets and financial liabilities are determined (in particular, the
valuation technique(s) and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair
value hierarchy into which the fair value measurements are categorised
(levels | to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair

value measurements is observable.

*  Level | fair value measurements are those derived from quoted
prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or

liabilities;

*  Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from inputs
other than quoted prices included within Level | that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices)

or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from valuation
techniques that include inputs for the asset or liability that are not

based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

As at 31 March 2013, the Group's held-for-trading investments are
measured at Level |. There is no transfer between different levels of
the fair value hierarchy for the years ended 31 March 2014 and 2013.

(i)  Fair value of the Group’s financial assets and financial liabilities that
are not measured at fair value on a recurring basis(but fair value

disclosures are required)

The directors of the Company consider that the carrying amounts of
financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the

consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

HKFRS 8 "Operating segments” requires operating segments to be identified
on the basis of internal reports about components of the Group that are
regularly reviewed by the chief operating decision makers (“CODM") in
order to allocate resources to the segment and to assess its performance.
Relevant information was reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the CODM, for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focusing on types of goods or services
delivered or provided.

In previous year, the Group reported its segment information based on five
reportable and operating segments as follows:

() Apparel retail business

(i) Luxury goods and accessories retail business

(iily  Salon and beauty service business

(iv) Pharmacy and healthcare product retail business

(v)  Securities trading and investments

During the year ended 3| March 2014, operations regarding (i) the luxury
goods and accessories retail business; (i) salon and beauty service business
and (iif) pharmacy and healthcare product retail business were discontinued
as a result of disposal of subsidiaries (details as set out in notes |2 and 25).

The segment information reported below does not include any figures for
these discontinued operations.
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. BEENITER S
The Group is now organised into the following two major operating AEBREBEREEBEBS RN
segments for its continuing operations, each of which represents an THEXrELES ﬁB EREDH
operating and reportable segment of the Group: BAEB EERNERD I :
(i) Apparel retail business () REZEEH
(i) Securities trading and investments (i) BEFEERKRE
Segment revenues and results THWBARESE
The following is an analysis of the Group's turnover and results by ATREAZHRELE D HE A K
reportable and operating segments. EBRCEXEREEDIM
For the year ended 3/ March 2014 BE-_F-NWE=FA=+—HIF
E
Continuing operations REKEER
Securities
Apparel retail trading and
business investments Total
BREEE #HEE
£ ERE At
HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
TER TER TER
Gross proceeds from the disposal of HERFEEEREY
held-for-trading investments TS RIBBE - 94,798 94,798
Segment revenue 2 EB A 34,494 - 34,494
Intra-segment revenue D EARUA (12,025) - (12,025)
Consolidated revenue malA 22,469 - 22,469
Change in fair value of held-for-trading RFEEBEREZATE
investments, included in segment result Z2EGEADBER) = 14,602 14,602
Segment result DERELE (63,867) 8,856 (55,011)
Unallocated corporate expenses KOBEAR S H (33,329)
Other income and gain H e A R s 17,805
Loss before taxation PR BRI B 1R (70,535)

72



HEEREERRAT
2014 F F K

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R SRR M A

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE T —NFE=A=+—HILtFE

TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Segment revenues and results (Continued)
For the year ended 31 March 2013

EXERIBER @)
TBBARFE#)

BT =-F-HA=+—HIF
B

Continuing operations REREER
Securities
Apparel retail trading and
business investments Total
KTE BHEE
% k& E& st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Gross proceeds from the disposal of HEREEERELZ
held-for-trading investments T8 IaE% - 445] 445|
Segment revenue D EBBRA 37,041 - 37,041
Intra-segment revenue D EARYA (11,892) - (11,892)
Consolidated revenue malA 25,149 - 25,149
Change in fair value of held-for-trading HIFEEREZRATE
investments, included in segment result BEGTADIES) - (8,676) (8,676)
Segment result DERELE (58,343) (8,826) (67,169)
Unallocated corporate expenses KOBERAR S H (42954)
Other income and gain HAW A kW= 286
Loss before taxation B iR E 1B (109,837)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same as the

Group's accounting policies described in note 3.

Segment (loss) profit represents the loss/profit resulted in each segment
without allocation of other income and gain and corporate expenses. This is
the measure reporting to the Group’s CODM for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment.

Intra-segment revenue are charged at agreed terms set out in the sales
invoices or agreements entered into between group companies.

meansBz et BRENFIA M
ZASBESFHRER

NH(ER)ENESIHAELES
B/ & TESBEELMKRARK
aARABSTH IR ERNE
FRBAFGMASEFEEERR
BRE B

DPHBARAZBREEEZAEEAR
A2 [P AL 15 % Pk 1 7 R ARER o
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. BEENIHER S
Segment assets and liabilities PHEEREE
Amounts of segment assets and liabilities of the Group are not reviewed AEBEZHHEERABEEAKL
by the Group's CODM or otherwise regularly provided to the CODM, AEEFEEERREERINUE
accordingly, segment assets and liabilities are not presented. MANEHERFELEREE

HARBE2IDHEERAG -

Other segment information H o3& B
For the year ended 3| March 2014 BE-—FE-—ME=ZF=+—F I F
/,%#
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: ATENEEERITANTR
Continuing operations HELEEB
Apparel Securities

retail  trading and
business investments  Unallocated Consolidated

¥ RBEEE
BEEH EERE R B ma
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
TERT THT TERT TERT

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment #) % « & K R E T & 4,043 - 782 4,825
Amortisation of trademark T E Y 125 = = 125
Loss on disposal of property, HEME  HE K

plant and equipment LEZER 4,199 - - 4,199
Reversal of allowance for inventories FEEERED (770) - - (770)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment  #1 % « & 5B K 3% % B 6,135 = = 6,135
Provision on onerous contracts EEENRE 5,531 = - 5,531
Write-off of deposits ik | 150 - - 150
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TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7 BEmpLMEE )
For the year ended 31 March 2013 BE_T—=F=H=1—HIF
E
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: AR BERERF AUNTHE:
Continuing operations REREER
Apparel Securities
retail trading and
business investments Unallocated  Consolidated
e  EFEHEE
TEXRK FIRE AOE ma
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THET TET THET TR

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ~ #1% « [iE MREITE 4769 = 885 5,654
Amortisation of trademark Py 125 = = 125
Loss on disposal of property, HEME - WE R

plant and equipment R EE 401 - - 401
Allowance for inventories FERE 750 = = 750
Write-off of deposits R MH 479 = = 1,479
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7. TURNOVER AND SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. BEBLVOIRERE)
Geographical information HWEEH
The Group's operations are located in Hong Kong and the PRC. AEBEERHUNEERPH -
Information about the Group's turnover from external customers from AEERERELEEBIBER
continuing operations is presented based on the location at which the goods LEEBERBREBEMRNEM
or services are delivered or provided. Information about the Group's non- Pt RIS < B 25 - REEIE
current assets is presented based on the geographical location of the assets. RBEEZEHTIREE EMEM

BUBEY -

All non-current assets of the Group are located in the respective group AEBFMEERDEENRERE
entity's country of domicile. BEBZEHER -

Revenue from
external customers from

Non-current assets continuing operations
REFERCEXBIREF
ERBEE ZWA
2014 2013 2014 2013
—2-NE —T-=-Ff ZT-OF —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TR THERT TET
Hong Kong 5B 2,566 31,585 = =
The PRC F 2,065 17,155 22,469 25,149
4,631 48,740 22,469 25,149
Information about major customers TEEFER
No individual customer has contributed over 10% of the total revenue of TERENEFRZMEFERAE
the Group in both years. EaWABTRERI0%-
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OTHER INCOME AND GAIN 8. EH#WARWSE
Continuing operations BRELEEREK
2014 2013
—F-mE ZT=
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TEx
Interest income M EWA 7 123
Write back of trade and other payables (note) F& 1 & 5 & E ftb 7038 # [0 (Kt 5%) 17,321 -
Others Hit 477 163
17,805 286
Note: Certain trade and other payables of approximately HK$17,321,000 due to certain M BAREETEREAZETENE
creditors located in the PRC were outstanding for a long period of time and the 5 R E A RIEL 173210008 T E &
creditors had not demand for repayment of these contractual debts since then. R—BREEE MEEABLITEE
During the year ended 3| March 2014, the management had revisited the Group's KEELZANRE -HE-ZT—N
obligation on these long outstanding trade and other payables. Based on the opinion FZAZ+T-HULEFE ERESH
from an independent legal adviser of the Group, the rights of the creditor to demand ERASERBAERALERZEN
repayment of such long outstanding contractual debts had been expired according EHRAMREZEE - AEEBEY
to the relevant law and regulation in the PRC. Accordingly, the Group's obligation in FEEBERRA  REPEMEBEN R
relation to these contractual debts had been expired and the management write off R BRAEREEZERAA
such trade and other payables and credit to the consolidated statement of profit or ANEBZENEEER - Bt - A
loss and other comprehensive income during the year ended 31 March 2014, SEEBALEANER 2 EAEL

Ewm MEEBRBE_T-—MF=
A=t HUEFEMBELEENME
HREAMPTBYFAGZRBRERA

tEERER -
IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 9. ¥ BERZREBHAE
At the end of the reporting period, in view of the operating loss resufted RBERR ARRETEEBEFLLERH
from the apparel retail business, management of the Group had performed B AEEEEERARIBRETERBL
a detail review of the property, plant and equipment of the apparel retail NE- -BELRE -REXRRSREEE
business. The recoverable amount of these property, plant and equipment EZZENE BERRBZAIBEEEAR
determined based on discounted cash flow method is lower than their RERAE HRAFERBRETEEBZ
carrying amount and thus an impairment loss on property, plant and NE BEIREFRDE BERLRXER
equipment of approximately HK$6,135,000 was made on the plant and BB 18 #76,1350008 7T

equipment of the apparel retail business during the current year.
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H%#E%EBTT*I

—HE=A=F+—-RAL%FE

LOSS BEFORE TAXATION

10. BRBIATES 1B

Continuing operations BEREXE
2014 2013
—E2-mE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTET
Loss before taxation from continuing operations 5B & ¥ 75 2
has been armived at after charging: BRI AT B IE E I -
Staff costs 8T %M
Directors' emoluments (note |3) =M (MaT13)
— fees and other emoluments — e REMME 5,622 7204
Other staff costs H 8 T % M
— salaries, allowances and bonus — e EE R4 22,318 23,689
— retirement benefits scheme contributions — RINEFFT B R 4,754 4513
— share-based payments included in — FATTRR X 2 ik
administrative expenses RER MK 4821 8959
37,515 44,365
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAAERY Z2FERA 14,118 18,289
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 1% * BB R X EITE 4,825 5,654
Amortisation for trademark IS 125 125
Auditor's remuneration ZE AT 2 2,083 2034
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment &Y ¥« WE M Xk E 2 BB 4,199 401
Operating lease rental on premises MELeHEHS 22,025 20,446
Provision on onerous contracts ZEENEE
(included in administrative and (Gt ATTH R
other operating expenses) HME L) 5,531 -
(Reversal of) allowance for inventories FE (R E)EME G A
(included in cost of sales) (note) 8 E BCR) (P 2E) (770) 750
White-off of deposits BEWH 150 1,479
Note:  During the year ended 31 March 2014, certain slow moving inventories of apparel fizy: HEZZ-—WNF=ZA=1+—HILF

retail business, which were previously written down, were sold and thus reversal of
allowance for inventories was recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

B BEMBCRETEER LS
THREFEDREL ARNEAR
ahEBEERERERTERRE
Bmo
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INCOME TAX . BFEH
Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% of the estimated assessable BREMNGEH Itz mEFE 2 f5t
profit for both years. For the year ended 31 March 2014, income tax from FERBUR R E 165%5T 8 « BE
continuing operations represent underprovision of Hong Kong Profits Tax. “E-WNE=A=+—RHLEFE"
TERLXBLABERETENEG
REBIR -
Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") BERBCEMGSHREICEMS
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC BEDREERGREE RGN
subsidiaries is 25% for both years. E MEARIRZMEFE 2R E
7 25% °
No Hong Kong Profits Tax and PRC Enterprise Income Tax has provided in 53 EA$ EEZMESFELERGE
the consolidated financial statements as the Group has no assessable profit ak o | BUAR é B 5 SRR A 5T
for both years. REBNEN KPR EAEHERE -
The income from continuing operations tax for the year can be reconciled AE F 1 EE SEBZEHELK
to the loss before taxation from continuing operations per the consolidated EERAREMEZARRR ZHEL
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: £ B R REEMT -
Hong Kong PRC Total
B R 5t
2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

TE-NE —T—-F ZE-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000
TE#xr TExT TAER

—ZF ZE-F —T—=F
HK$000  HK$000 HK$000
FTET THT T

Loss before tax B % A 5 18 (28,605) (55,589) (41,930) (54,248) (70,535) (109,837)
Domestic income tax rate N R =Yl s 16.5% 16.5% 25% 25%
Taxation at the domestic BT EE
income tax rate MR g T HIE (4,720) 172 (10483)  (13563) | (I5203) (22735
Tax effect of expenses not TENBRRZ 2
deductible for tax purpose MiET 2 6,181 7,742 2,393 359 8,574 8,101
Tax effect of income not taxable % p% ﬁ‘i WA 2 B 7%
for tax purpose 4 (809) (29) (192) - (1,001) (29)
Tax effect of estimated tax losses 1 & 38 15 &1 B 7%
not recognised BRsGBRE - 1,458 8,282 13,204 8,282 14,662
Utilisation of tax losses previously ®f F i@ 1 [ & ¥ 2
not recognised BB ER (652) - - (652) -
Underprovision in prior years BEFEEEIR 35 - - 35 -
Tax charge for the year NEEHRBYH 35 - - - 35 _
At the end of the reporting period, the Group's subsidiaries in the PRC have RBERR AEE 2P BQ
unused tax losses of HK$124,865,000 (2013: HK$91,737,000) available for Al | 1248650008 T(ZE — =% :
offset against future profits, which will expire in five years. As at 31 March 91,737,000/ 70 ) 2 RE) A B 5 B 18
2013, the Group's subsidiary in Hong Kong had tax losses of HK$3,952,000 AEERREN  ARHARAF
available for offset against future profit, which may be carried forward RZE—=F=ZA=Z+—RH' &%
indefinitely and such tax losses had been fully utilised during the year ended Z BB B A A B 39520008 7T
31 March 2014. No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of ZIRBEEEHEERT RN W
the tax losses due to unpredictability of future profit streams. AERBHAE MEBANBERD
REZ-2—mE=H=1—0I
EEEBDA - h A LB AR
A ROR - B B A RS B R R
BIEBRAEE -

~
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12.

80

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 2. BRIEEE
During the year ended 31 March 2014, the Group disposed of its 100% BE_T-—NMF-A=1T—HLF
equity interests in subsidiaries engaged in (i) luxury goods and accessories B AEELEREN)REEMD
retail business, (i) salon and beauty services business and (iii) pharmacy and HZEERK  WEXZEENR
healthcare product retail business. EAMRBER: RiilBEERRBEE
mEEEBZMB LA 2 HPARKE -
Accordingly, the Group's (i) luxury goods and accessories retail business; - AEEONLREERLESNT
(ii) salon and beauty services business; and (iii) pharmacy and healthcare EEK WEXZEENRER]
product retail business are treated as discontinued operations. BEL: RiVEERRRERTE
SBERBRIERKRE -
The results of and loss from the discontinued operations for the period BT -FMA-BRELESL
from | April 2013 to respective dates of disposal of subsidiaries and for the B ARl BEIEBMENREZE S
year ended 3| March 2013 are analysed as follows: T—=F=-A=T—BLEFE B
RIEXRBZRERBES AT :
For the
period from
| April 2013
to respective For the
dates of year ended
disposal of 31 March
subsidiaries 2013
B
—E—=
A—HiE BE
EHE —T—=%
EWEDA =A
Z B8 =t—H
L H HEE
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERx TET
Revenue WA 9,925 8,190
Cost of sales and services 84 & N B 7% A AR (4,798) (3978)
Other income, other gains and losses Hilg A ~ Efblees R E1E I 2,202
Selling and distribution costs HE ko HK AR (17,637) (17,764)
Administrative expenses THRAX (2,367) (4,800)
Impairment on property, plant and equipment ME BERFERE (8,988) =
Impairment on inventories FERE (15,768) -
Loss before taxation MREIER (39,632) (16,150)
Income tax expense P15 B 2 - -
Loss for the period/year i/ F N EE (39,632) (16,150)
Net loss on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 25) HEMRBRRZ
B e (MEr25) (602) -
(40,234) (16,150)
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[2. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 12. ERIEEE =)
Loss for the period/year from discontinued operations included the BREEB 2B/ FRABEBAEN
following: T&E:
For the
period from
| April 2013
to respective For the

dates of year ended
disposal of 31 March

subsidiaries 2013
=
—E-Z=F
A—HiE BE
EHE —T—=F
EWE AR =A
Z B =+—HA
HE R EFE
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FTET
Other staff costs H b & T %7 B
— salaries, allowances and bonus — &  RBIRIELA 3,779 4010
— retirement benefit scheme contributions — RIRTE FET Bl R 155 174
3,934 4184
Cost of inventories recognised as expenses BRAEBERYT ZFEKRAN 1,796 3,376
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment mME - -BERRBHITE 2,397 1,829
Auditor's remuneration 1 E0Em Bl & 8 15
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BEMKEZER 3,014 15
Operating lease rental on premises MELLHERS 5,645 6416
Reversal of allowance for inventories FERERERGIAHEE
(included in cost of sales and services) (note) R AR A A (B &%) - (254)
Note: During the year ended 31 March 2013, certain slow moving inventories of luxury goods e BE_Z—=F=RA=1t—HILFE"
and accessories retail business, which were previously written down, were sold and thus BAMR ZEERRENHTEER
reversal of allowance for inventories was recognised in the consolidated statement of JETHRBEFEEEREL  HRES
profit or loss and other comprehensive income. BakAt2ERERBERATEEE
B o
The carrying amount of the assets and liabilities of the discontinued B TEBENLSLERRYBER
operations at respective dates of disposal are disclosed in note 25. BEEEERMIT SRE
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I3. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

Notes:

@

(b)

Mr. Chiu Siu Po was resigned on 4 November 201 3.

Mr. Liu On Bong, Peter was resigned on 28 June 2013.

Mr. Wan Wai Hei, Wesley was resigned on 21 March 2014.

Mr. Au Wai June was resigned on 6 September 2013.

Mr. Jackson Ng was appointed as director on |6 April 2012 and resigned on 7 April

2013.

Mr. Wang Liang was appointed as director on | January 2014.

Mr. Zhang Bao Yuan was appointed as director on 26 February 2014.

Mr. Chung Yuk Lun was appointed as director on 4 November 2013 and resigned on
31 March 2014. Mr. Chung was also the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and his emoluments disclosed above included those for services
rendered by him as the Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer.

Mr. Huang Limin was appointed as director on 31 March 2014,

Ms. Lam Yan Fong, Flora and Mr. Miu, Frank H. were resigned on 19 May 2014.

The amounts represent (i) salary and other benefits received by Mr. Au Wai June for his
service as a director of subsidiaries of the Company after he was resigned as executive
director of the Company on 6 September 2013 and (i) the other benefits received by
Mr. Chung Yuk Lun for his service as a director of the subsidary of the Company during
the year ended 31 March 2014.

During both years, no emoluments were paid by the Group to any of the
directors or chief executive as an inducement to join or upon joining the

Group or as compensation for loss of office. None of the directors or chief

executive has waived any emoluments in both years

13. EERFETHAEME®

i

@

®)

BOREER_Z-—=F+—-HNA
BHE -

BRABEER-_Z-—=ZFRA-TAN
BB

ERBEAER-T-MEZ/F-+-
BRBHE -

REEEER-T—=FNANEEE -

RBBFER_ZT-—_FWATH
BEZAIRESE YN _F-=FNA
tHBE-

IRAER-_ZT-—NFE-A-HEZ
TRESE-

RELAEN-_T—NF-_A=-+RX
REZEARES:-

ERBAER T —Z=F1+—-AWAE
BEZEREZ IR _T-ME=A
Zt-BRE-BRENFRADA
ERERBERTRES LXAHRE
WeRRRETESARERTHE
HmMRHRE 2B -

BRREER-_ZE—NE=ZR=1—
BEZEAEE-

HRF LT RBHERAER-_T—DOF
AATAREE-

ERRERONEETER =T —=
FAANBEARARNTESR
BRHEAARAMBRARESFFWRERZ
FeREMBARHEEBEERE
E-E-ME=ZRA=+-HIEERHR
HERARMBRARIESHKEzHE
g R o

RZMEFE RSB ERFEM
EFATBTHAEXNEMMSE
AR 5| B o0 88 7< £ (B 3 fF /& 0 R 1R
LRBIFEAEBRE YEES
ZEIBTHABRZMESENE
EMME -
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14.

84

EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three
(2013: four) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are
included in the disclosures in note |3 above. The emoluments of the

remaining two (2013: one) individual employees were as follows:

4. EEME
AEERERSFALTFR  Z4(=
T—=F MNRA)BERAAIEE &
EIMEREXMEBBEE 4T
Mma(—E—=F: —%)EAREE
ZHemT

2014 2013
—EF-mEFE —T-=F%F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER FTAET
Salaries and other benefits FeREHEMEF 1,336 801
Retirement benefits schemes contributions 3R YR 18 F 5T 2| { X 28 15
Share-based payments IR BERE 2 5% 8l 278
1,445 1,094

The emoluments were within the following bands: MENTATEE :

No. of employees

BEAR

2014 2013
—E-mFE —T—=F

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000 Z£ £ 1,000,000 7T

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 5% 7T Z 1,500,000 % 7T

2 _

No remunerations were paid by the Group to any of the directors of the
Company or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or

upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

. DIVIDENDS

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed during both years, nor has
any dividend been proposed since the end of the reporting period.

AEBEYERAAAREMNESHR
LREFALINENME - AR
SIEMBEARERERMBR R
B REERIfE -

15. RE
NAEFEERERY  ERE KR
ERBE - BHREHRENEEM
BRRE.
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LOSS PER SHARE 6. BRER
For continuing and discontinued operations REFEKERCRILERY
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable to the ARABEBEANELEREARE S
owners of the Company is based on the following data: BREDEATHEENE
2014 2013
—2-mFE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET
Loss for the purpose of basic and diluted FTEEREAREEFBE L EE
loss per share (110,804) (125987)
2014 2013
—EB-mEFE —T-=%F
’000 ‘000
TR TR
(restated)
(E51)
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary shares T E&RER N E#EEE 2
for the purpose of basic and diluted loss L@ T e
per share (note) 1,703,611 817713
Note: The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose of basic loss per B st EBE T NER_T—=F=
share for the year ended 31 March 2014 and 2013 has been adjusted for the share B=+—BHIEEZEREARNEE Y
subdivision on 4 June 2014 as disclosed in note 30 “Event After the Reporting Period”. o F AR INFE 2 BT 330 ) & &

BREBEIFREN _T-—MOF AN
AETZROFAELRE -
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—HE=A=F+—-RAL%FE

LOSS PER SHARE (Continued)

From continuing operations

Basic loss per share from continuing operations attributable to the owners
of the Company is calculated based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company from continuing operations of HK$70,570,000
(2013: HK$109,837,000) and the denominators detailed above for basic

earnings per share.

From discontinued operations

Basic loss per share from discontinued operations is HK2.36 cents per
share (2013: HK1.98 cents per share), based on the loss for the year from
discontinued operations of HK$40,234,000 (2013: HK$16,150,000) and the
denominators detailed above for basic loss per share.

The computation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 3| March
2014 and 2013 does not assume the exercise of the Company’s share
options because the exercise price of those outstanding options during the
period was higher than the average market price of shares for the years
ended 31 March 2014 and 201 3.

6. BREE®B)

REBESELE

ARRAIBEEANBERBEREEK
LCEBRERABEEDREAD A E
ﬁAFE%%%%%%Z$¢E
B 18705700008 (=T — = F -
mmmw%m&tX%ﬁLﬁ%
FREREHN 2D

RECKRIEEH

Eﬂ¢¥ﬁ25%ﬁ$%%%i%
268 ZTE—=ZF: §RI198%
fllh) - %Eﬁfaﬂ¢¥ﬁ2$¢
EE1E402340008 L(ZF—=5F:
|mwmmmw&tX%#LE%
SREABEZD

AEBE_T-DOFER_FT-—=F
:ﬂ:+—5ﬁ¢EZ#k%%%
BRYERKARRZBRERET
£ HERBAZSHRITER
REZTEERRERORBE_T
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I7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. ¥ BERS%E
Furniture,
fixtures and Leasehold Motor
equipment  improvements vehicles Total
R %E He
k& WEREE e ast

HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
THT THR TR TR

COST A
At | Apnil 2012 RZZT-—-FMA—H [1,706 4992 7223 23921
Exchange adjustments ER R 179 236 = 415
Additions NE 7131 26,667 = 33798
Disposals HE (2029) (1377) - (3406)
At 31 March 2013 R-F—=F=fA=+—H 16,987 30518 7223 54,728
Exchange adjustments fE 5 A 189 206 - 395
Additions NE 378 2022 = 2400
Disposals & (2214) (10028) (6,065) (18,307)
Fliminated on disposal of subsidiaries 6 BB A ) B 3

(Note 25) (P EE25) (3240) (15027) (1,158) (19.425)
At 31 March 2014 R-ZE-OFE=A=1—-H 12,100 7691 - 19791
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION R MERAE

AND IMPAIRMENT
At | Apnl 2012 E’\\: T-_FMNA—H 8,783 883 290 9956
Exchange adjustments B i, 58 2 19 67 - 186
Provided for the year NEEZERE [,849 4671 1013 7483
Fliminated on disposals 6 B 3 (2016) (974) - (2990)
At 31 March 2013 W-_E—=F=RA=1+-H 8,735 4597 1,303 14,635
Exchange adjustments B 5% & 78 () - 71
Provided for the year REERE 2390 4118 714 7222
Fliminated on disposals & 5 (1,389) (3941) (1,264) (6,594)
Impairment B 2,787 12,336 = 15,123
Fliminated on disposal of subsidiaries I Y B 8 3] T 8

(Note 25) (P &E25) (1,706) (9427) (753) (11,886)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-WE=A=+—H 10,895 7676 = 18,571
CARRYING VALUES REE
At 31 March 2014 R-EB-MFE=A=+—H 1,205 15 - 1220
At 31 March 2013 R-_E—-=ZF=ZA=1+—H 8252 25921 5920 40,093
The above items of property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a L% BERREER Z nE
straight-line basis at the following rates per annum: DUNBERERATFX E‘|’ E
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of terms of HEMERE RBEgTE

the leases or 7 years (BB E BE)

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3to 7 years G HERRE 3575
Motor vehicles 3to 10 years EE 3B 0E
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18.

88

TRADEMARK 18. BE
HK$'000
TET
CosT ZEN
At | April 2012, 31 March 2013 and RZE—_FMA—H"
31 March 2014 —F-=%=A=t—H
RZZ-ME=A=+—H 2,500
AMORTISATION B
At | April 2012 RZE—ZFWMA—H 62
Charge for the year REELTH 125
At 31 March 2013 RZE—=F=ZA=+—H 187
Charge for the year AEE M 125
At 31 March 2014 R-ZB-MF=A=+—H 312
CARRYING VALUES IREE
At 3| March 2014 R_E-MFE=A=1—H 2,188
At 31 March 2013 R-_F-—=Zf=ZA=+—H 2313
The above trademark represents brand name used in apparel retail business TRERERETEXGMAME
which was acquired from third party and amortised on a straight-line basis DRBEBE=7 XREREH0
over 20 years. FHH-
INVENTORIES 9. #8
2014 2013
—E2-mFE —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TET
Finished goods 20,767 35217
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

,%?\A ot 75 ¥ 2% B &

—ME=A=+—-RAL%E

20 EWEZREMKE

2014 2013

“E-NE —T=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FAT

Trade receivables EWE 5B 2,376 6,080

Other receivables (note a) H b jE Yy 28 (B s a) 4512 5,850

Total trade and other receivables EWE S R A IEERE 6,888 11930
Retail sales and salon and beauty services provided are nomally settled in TEHENRMEREEZZER
cash or by credit card with the settlement from the corresponding banks REARRBE —RIABE LK FE QA
or other financial institutions within 7 days. For receivables from retail sales RO EMmMBEBIUERRR7

conducted through shopping malls and department stores, the Group allows
a credit period range from 30-90 days. The following is an aged analysis of
trade receivables presented based on the invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

ARER- Wﬁﬂﬁ%&ﬁﬁ@?
FrETTEHE CERRFEMS -
$EI%%ZEﬁ%n¥wi%Ho
RBEMR REZAHEIE
WESRBEZRBRONMOT

2014 2013

—B-ME —F-=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FAT

Within 90 days 90H A 2,019 5,378
91 to 180 days 91 Z 180H 197 339
181 to 365 days 18] £365H 99 315
Over | year K 6l 48
2,376 6,080

Note a:  Included in other receivables were deposits for purchasing apparel products
amounted to HK$655,000 (2013: HK$1,233,000).

The Group has policy of providing allowance for doubtful debts which
is based on the evaluation of collectability and age of accounts and on
management’s judgement including credit worthiness and past collection
history of each customer.

Birta HOBEKRFEFABAREESR
ZET & 6550008 T(ZE—=
123300058 7C) °

AEEBRRBREWEEN KRR
AEAREEEHRREP 2 A
(B E R KB WK 8) 3R &
Afhe s -
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Included in the Group's trade receivables balance are debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of HK$357,000 as at 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$702,000)
which are past due as at the end of the reporting period for which the
Group has not provided for impairment loss. The directors considered
that trade receivables which are neither past nor vet impaired are of good
credit quality and there are continuous subsequent settlements from these
customers. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

20.

EWEZRHEMTE®R
AEBZRKE SHEBELEBBER
—E-NE=RA=+-HZ2EHEAE
A% AB3B708T(Z T —=F:
702,000 7T) 2 FEM AR 3% - B 5118
RBEHREAS EAEETE
ARBEREREE EERATE
AHRTARECEKESHNERGE
BRRI MRSEPEERBESR
R ANEEVERUEEHRBFAA
B EEER

ERREARREZERESRER
[

2014 2013

—EB-mEFE —T-=%F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TR TEx

91 to 180 days 912 180 H 197 339
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H 99 315
Over | year | FE A E 6l 48
357 702
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HELD-FOR-TRADING INVESTMENTS 2l FEEERE
2014 2013
“EB-mE —T-=F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TERT FTET
Held-for-trading investments include: BREBEEREBRSE:
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong REE L2 RAE 5 - 29,480
Held-for-trading investments comprise of equity securities listed in Hong REEERERRENEE LT 2R
Kong and their fair values were based on quoted market bid prices. A& HRTETRET SRR
BEABEE-
BANK BALANCES AND CASH 2 BRTEBHRAEE

Bank balances carry interest at average market rates of 0.01% (2013: 0.01%)
per annum.

23(2). TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

RITREBIEM G FHENR0IE(Z
T—=F:001B):t8 -

BE.ENEZRAEMRE

2014 2013

—F-NE —T-Z=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT FET

Trade payables fEfE 5 FIA - 4,842
Other payables and accruals HiENFIBENETER 12,696 30,376
Total trade and other payables ENESZREMFIALE 12,696 35218
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92

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
The following is an aged analysis of trade payables presented based on the

invoice date at the end of the reporting period.

Be).BENEZREMNE L)

REERR HEZEHEIZE
NESRBZREDITMT

2014 2013

—E-mFE —T—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

THER TET

Within 90 days 9B A = 137
91 to 180 days 912 180 H - -
181 to 365 days 181 2365 H - 66
Over 365 days 365A LA L - 4,639
- 4842

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranged from 60 to 90 days.

PROVISION

Amount represents the provision on onerous operating lease contracts
in relation to the retail shops of the apparel retail business. Management
considers the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligation under such lease
contracts exceed the economic benefits expected to be received under

such lease contracts.

BEEMZEEHNTOENH-

(). B 1

BRNREABRERTERHLE
EECEERLHERNREE -
EERARBEEREERNENTA
EAARERABREHEEES
)78 B R 2 AR B A 8

o) mf i A
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24. SHARE CAPITAL 24. RA&
Number of Nominal
shares value
ROHAE HfE
‘000 HK$'000
T& FTET
Authorised: ETE

Ordinary shares of HK$0.| each RZE-——_FMA—-BEREE

at | April 2012 0.1 BT 2 ERR 5,000,000 500,000
Share consolidation (Note a) B & Of (B 5t a) (4,000,000) -
Share subdivision (Note a) R 17 48 (B st a) 49,000,000 =
Share consolidation (Note ) & pf (ffste) (45,000,000) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZE—=F=ZA=+—8K

at 31 March 2013 and 31 March 2014 —E-mE=ZR=1+—H

REEOI BT EBR 5,000,000 500,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITREE:
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZE—Z—FMA—BEkREAE

at | April 2012 0.1 BT EBIR 3182013 318,201
Share consolidation (Note a) a6 fof (K aEa) (2545611) -
Capital reduction (Note a) B AH R (P 5t a) - (311,837)
Issue of shares under rights issue (Note b) BB R ETRG (FH5Eb) 318,201 3,182
Issue of shares under placement (Note c) BIRELE ETRH (FIEEc) 127,280 1273
Issue of shares upon exercise of share options 17 {5 B % 4 FF 25 17 AR 17 (B 55 d)

(Note d) 63,640 636
Share consolidation (Note ) & ot (ffste) (1,030,971) -
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each R-ZE—=F=A=+—HE8KRHEE

at 3| March 2013 0178 EBK 114,552 11455
Issue of shares upon exercise of 17 150 8 At #E BR5 5 17 Mk f (BRI 1)

share options (Note f) ['1,455 [,145
Issue of shares under placement (Note g) BREEEETRN (e 88,434 8,844
Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each RZE-—HFE=A=1+—H

at 31 March 2014 BREEO BT Bk 214441 21444
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Notes:

94

@

On 23 August 2012, the Group effected a capital reorganisation which involved the
followings:

—  Share consolidation that every 5 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.10
each be consolidated into | consolidated share of HK$0.50 each;

—  Capital reduction that paid-up capital of the consolidated shares be cancelled
to the extent of HK$0.49 per consolidated share so as to form a new share of
HK$0.01 each;

—  Share subdivision that the authorised but unissued consolidated shares of
HK$0.50 each be subdivided into 50 shares of HK$0.01 each; and

—  Transfer of the entire amount of the credit arising from the capital reduction
to accumulated losses of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$311,837,000.

On 7 December 2012, 318,201,240 rights shares of HK$0.01 each were issued on the
basis of one rights share for every two existing shares held on 15 November 2012 at
subscription price of HK$0.25 per rights share.

On 3 January 2013, 127,280,496 ordinary shares of HK$0.0| each were issued at
placing price of HK$0.085 per share through a placing agent pursuant to a placing
agreement dated 20 December 2012.

During the year ended 31 March 2013, 63,640,248 share options of HK$0.0l each
were exercised at exercise price of HK$0.105.

On 31 January 2013, the Company effected a share consolidation that every 10 issued
and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.0| each be consolidated into | consolidated
share of HK$0.| each.

On 19 April 2013, 11,455,244 shares of HK$0.| each were issued upon the exercise of
share options at exercise price of HK$ 0.644 per share.

On 7 May 2013, 9 October 2013 and 20 December 2013, 22,910,489, 29,783,635 and
35,740,362 ordinary shares of HK$0.| each were issued at placing price of HK$0.54,
HK$0.59 and HK$2.16 per share through placing agents pursuant to placing agreements
dated 18 April 2013, 26 September 2013 and 9 December 2013, respectively.

24. RA(#)
B3

@

R-_E——FNA-+=H 4A%H
BITEAEH HBBRUATER:

— BROBAH BUHEESRERA
BEOIOBTZERTRAEMTE
BERAMAIREENSOET.Z
AR

—  BXHIE - BUEEAHBROS
REATGRA FRD049E T -

gﬁﬂﬁﬁ%@@aw%%i%

X

=)

— BHFE BEESREES

BILZAETBRBITAHBRORF
ﬁﬁm%%%@@ﬂm%ﬁi%
GED

— RAFHRELZ2BEREY
g?ﬂW%ﬁ%A$®ﬂ%H
718 ©

RZE——&+-A+B AQA
7318201240 0% & IR A (B 0.01 7 7T 2 it
B EEAN-_FT—=-F+—H
+HHEEHEMBRAEROERE K
%%%ﬁv%%%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁms
BT o

R-E-—=6—F=0 REBHA
—E-—F+-A-+HZRERE
ARAER—AREREBREEES
%0085 7% 7T % 17127280496 f% & % M
B0 BT @Ak -

BE_T-—=F=A=1+—-HItFE"
6364024817 & 7 EE00I B 7T 2 B R
TEIRITEBO.105 /8 T EITIE

R-BE-—=F—H=+—-0" AQ7
BITRDAMH BEI0RTREEO
BTZEETRRBTLBRAHA
IREREECI BT ZAHBRN -

RZE—=FMA+NHB " 11455244
BEREE BT ZROERTERE
PHERR T BB AR064475 T T IAZET o

R-E—=%HA+H —E—=F
TAABR-ZE—=8+-8A=18"
BEASSRAE-T—=FNA+N\A
—E-ZFEARZFTARARZZE—=
F+ZANBZEERZE 22910489
B ~ 29,783,635 8% K 35,740,362 % & A% T
BOIBLZEBREEBRERER
it € BERR054%8 7T~ 0597 T K216
BT AT -
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25. HEKEB AT

Disposal of subsidiaries engaged in salon and beauty services

business

On 8 November 2013, the Group entered into a conditional sale and

purchase agreement with an independent third party, to dispose of

100% equity interest in Brune Blonde Limited and its subsidiary, at a
cash consideration of HK$8,000,000. Upon the completion of such
disposal on 29 November 2013, Brune Blonde Limited and its wholly

owned subsidiary ceased to be subsidiaries of the Group.

The assets and liabilities of Brune Blonde Limited and its subsidiary at

the date of disposal were as follows:

(@)

HERBEXZIEERRESR
RELE2HEAQT

RZFE—Z=ZF+—ANH" &
EEE—FBIYFE=HIIUA
B E W& A H SBrune
Blonde Limited & £ [ B A 7] 2
2 HP Rk HE - 32 R (B /8,000,000
AT BHLHER-_T—=F
+—AZ+ABEZEHKE  Brune
Blonde Limited X = 2 & It B 2
EENEY-¥ - A= NG

Brune Blonde Limited &2 EH [ B 2
ARLERHZEEREBED
T

HK$'000

FTET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BENM&E 6,985
Inventories FE 302
Trade and other receivables fEWZ 5 K H fh 5118 1,532
Bank balances and cash RITER LR 447
Trade and other payables BB S R E KA (1,490)
Net assets disposed of Tt EEEFE 1,776
Gain on disposal HE 224
Total consideration satisfied by cash NBREeEX N2 BRE 8,000

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: LERMEAESRAFEE

Cash consideration received BERREKE 8,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of FTHERTE#REE® (447)
7,553

95



TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e AR R MR

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries engaged in luxury goods and accessories (b)

96

retail business
On 3 December 2013, the Group disposed of its 100% equity
interest in Sound Chamber Limited and its subsidiaries to an
independent third party at a cash consideration of HK$2,000,000.
Upon the completion of such disposal, Sound Chamber Limited

()

25 HEMBAR®E)

and its wholly owned subsidiary ceased to be subsidiaries of the

Group.

The assets and liabilities of Sound Chamber Limited and its

subsidiary at the date of disposal were as follows:

HEREZEERREMHSE
ERHBLT
() RZE—=F+=-H=H"
AEER—RBUE=H
HERRAREEARA
ARENBRAR 22K
# - B 2 & 52000000
BT ABHETKRE
ERREEERAA R
H2EMNBARTBAR
SEZHBRA -

BESRSEERAAR
EHMBARINLERMZ

HERARKNT
HK$'000
FTET
Inventories FE 781
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 J H th 5K I8 1,243
Bank balances and cash RITEBR LIRS 342
Trade and other payables FE B 5 K H h TR 18 (158)
Net assets disposed of FIHEBERE 2,208
Release of translation reserve upon HEWB ARG B EFE
disposal of subsidiaries 169
Loss on disposal & B8 (377)
Total consideration satisfied by cash MWReZ I BRE 2,000
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERFMEEARSRAFHE
Cash consideration received EHBRERE 2,000
Bank balances and cash disposed of PR ERITHEBRER S (342)
1,658




25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries engaged in luxury goods and accessories (b)
retail business (Continued)

On 12 December 2013, the Group entered into a conditional
sales and purchase agreement with an independent third party,
to dispose of 100% equity interest in High Rhine Limited and
its subsidiaries, at a cash consideration of HK$1,500,000. Upon
the completion of such disposal on 30 December 2013, High
Rhine Limited and its wholly owned subsidiaries ceased to be
subsidiaries of the Group. On 28 January 2014, the Group
also disposed of Gilderton Limited at a cash consideration of
HK$10,000 and Gilderton Limited accordingly ceased to be

(i)

subsidiary of the Group.

HEEREERRAT
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25 HEMEBAR#E)

The assets and liabilities of High Rhine Limited and its subsidiaries
and Gilderton Limited at the date of disposals were as follows:

HEREREERREHEE
EXCHBARE)
iy RZE—=ZF+_-_FA+=

A AEBE-ZBILE
=HRUBIRHES R
JA i & High Rhine Limited &
EWBARZ 2B -
B e & 515000007
T BBALER=-_T—=
F+-_A=tH=EK%
High Rhine Limited &% & 2 &
MBRARTBEALAEEZ
MEAR R -_T—MF
—AZ+tNB X&EER
H & Gilderton Limited * 37
& K 1B A1000078 T #
Gilderton Limited ™ B /& 7
EEZHBAR -

High Rhine Limited & £ K B
A 8] BA K Gilderton Limited
REERBZEERAR
T

HK$'000

FET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BB REB 406
Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 I H h 5K I8 1,095
Bank balances and cash RITEHRRR 706
Trade and other payables e B 5 K& H th 5 IE (191)
Net assets disposed of FRHEBRERE 2016
Loss on disposal & B8 (506)
Total consideration satisfied by cash NReETHzBRE 1,510

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERMESARSMRAFHE

Cash consideration received BERREKE 1,510
Bank balances and cash disposed of FrHERTERERS (706)
804

97



TACK FIORI INTERNATIONAL GROUP LIMITED
Annual Report 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N ﬁ%#ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ?

For the year ended 31 March 2014 HE-Z—NFE=A=+—HILFE

25. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

25 HEMBAR®E)

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries engaged in pharmacy and healthcare product  LERZEERRBREMSE

retail business

On 9 January 2014, the Group disposed of 100% equity interest in
King Delight Limited and its subsidiary to an independent third party
at a cash consideration of HK$800,000. Upon the completion of such

EBz2HEBAR

R_ZE-ME—-—ANB K&
Em—2BZE=HHEKng
Delight Limited &2 B fif & 2 & 2

disposal, King Delight Limited and its wholly owned subsidiary ceased 2 ER AR 4E - B & X (B /800000

1o be subsidiaries of the Group.

The assets and liabilities of King Delight Limited and its subsidiary at the

date of disposal were as follows:

BT BB HE T King
Delight Limited & & & & I & 2
AITBERAEE B AR

King Delight Limited 2 £ Fff /& 22 7]
RHERMZEERBENT

HK$'000
FTET

Property, plant and equipment ME - BFEREHB 148

Inventories FE 239

Trade and other receivables FEW B 5 Ko H I8 149

Bank balances and cash RITEBR IR E 412

Trade and other payables e B 5 K H h 5RIE (205)
Net assets disposed of T EBERE 743

Gain on disposal HE W 57

Total consideration satisfied by cash NReEZ 2 BRE 800

Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HERMELRSRAFE

Cash consideration received 2R ERE 800

Bank balances and cash disposed of PR ERITHEBRIRE (412)

388

The impact of the disposed subsidiaries engaged in (i) salon and beauty

HERFONFEXXEERRE

services business; (i) luxury goods and accessories retail business; and DREER: (VREERRE
(iif) pharmacy and healthcare products retail business on the Group’s HEERH RiiNERE RRE
results in the current period and prior year is disclosed in note 12, EmTEXRBLMBARER

98
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

On |1 April 2002, the Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Old
Scheme”) for the primary purpose of providing incentives to any directors
(including executive directors, non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors) and employees of the Group and any advisors,
consultants, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents, customers, business
partners, joint venture business partners, promoters, service providers to
the Group (“Participants’) who the board of directors considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or shall contribute to the Group. The Old
Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years commencing
on Il April 2002. Under the Old Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to the Participants to subscribe for shares in
the Company.

On 18 September 2012, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “New Scheme™) with effective periods of 10 years commencing on 18
September 2012 and the Old Scheme was expired on [0 April 2012. The
principal terms of the New Scheme are similar to the Old Scheme. All other
respects of the provisions of the Old Scheme shall remain in full force and
holders of all options granted under the Old Scheme prior to such expiry
shall be entitled to exercise the outstanding options pursuant to the terms
of the Old Scheme until expiry of the said options.

26 URDAER 2R

UREGERBRETE
R-FZE_FWA+—H  KXQF
R-RERESS(ESD
TRENERRRESS2RBE
RARCLABEHAKEEL AR
ZAREIMES(ERAUTES
FATEENBUFNTES ) RE
8§ ARAREEEMER  FAA
DHEE ABH HERH KE-R
FXBGEBHF G2XBEBH %
EARBRBHERT2EE]) &
AEE-ET WA+ R
ERI0F - REBEEFE ARAE
ZER A2 EERNBRENER
BARARD

RZE——FAATNA A7
Fa— B ERE B[ 3ErEl)
BEZZ——FAATNBEFER
0 MEHEER-_T—Z—F0
A+BE®. Fatdlc EE K7 HE
BB B S BEXRA
BEEMAEMNERTRE N MR
ERABEEFERL CBEER
BZBEEANERR EERERER
Bl REBEEFE CBERITERART
2 BARHE o
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

26. URDRBER 2R
NREEERRENE ()
BREZRTEANFEDOT

Details of specific categories of options are as follows:

Adjusted
exercise price

after the capital

Adjusted
exercise price

after the share

Original reorganisation on consolidation on

Date of grant Vesting period/date Exercise period exercise price 23 August 2012 31 January 2013

R-®B-—Z=F R-ZB-=F%

NA=t=H —B=t+-8H

ETEXEAR ETROSHE

RHBAH BES/BH TR R HEE ZKHBTEE ZKHBIREE

(Note a) (Note b)

(Pt 5Ea) (Fff5Eb)

Old Scheme 16.1.2012 16.1.2012-157.2013 16.72013-15.1.2015 HK$0. 1 HK$0.5 HK$5
Bt 01T 058 7T 58T
New Scheme 1942013 1942013 19.42013-184.2023 HK$0.644 N/A N/A
At gl 0,644 7T TiE R TiE R
14.12013 14.12013 14.1.2013-13.1.2023 HK$0.105 N/A N/AT

0.105/8 7 TER TER

¢ FHBBTZAABBRAEN-E-=
F—A=+—BAETE-

Al options under New Scheme were exercised before 31 January 201 3.
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 26, URGOAEE®R 2T @E)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued) NREGEERESS(E)
The following table discloses movement of the Company's share options TREERNAFEFHTEIREE
under the New Scheme and the Old Scheme during the current year: BRIARAERE LS

Number of share options

BREYE
Outstanding at Granted Exercised Lapsed during Outstanding at
142013 duringthe year  during the year the year 31.3.2014
R-B-=f R-Z-mE
mA-A =A=+-A
fH RATHE EREH ERTE FRER i R AT B
(Note c)
(M zEe)

‘000 '000 000 000 ‘000
1t it 1 Fh i

Old Scheme B d
Directors B2 1,400 - - (1,400) -
Consultants AN 4400 = = (4,400) =
Employees EE 200 - - (200) -
6,000 - - (6,000) -

New Scheme Hata
Consultants FHAA - 1,455 (11,455) - -
6,000 1,455 (11,455) (6,000) -

Exercisable at 31 March 2014 R-_E—mE
ZA=t—H

T -
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)
Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

26. URDRBER 2R
DREGERRESEE)
TREBEREFHTE REERA

The following table discloses movements of the Company's share options

under the New Scheme and the Old Scheme during the prior year. TALBIBEREZEZY -
Number of share options
BRERE
Granted Exercised
Outstanding Capital Share during during Outstanding
at 142012 reorganisation  consolidation the year the year at 31.3.2013
R-g--% R-B-=%
A—H =B=+-H
te R AT B EXE4 R4 & 5t FREH FRTE e R AT 6
(Note a) (Note b)
(M3ta) (P 7Eb)
000 ‘000 000 000 000 000
i 4 i i i i
Old Scheme -5
Directors = 70,000 (56,000) (12,600) = = 1,400
Consultants HHA 220,000 (176,000) (39,600) = = 4,400
Employees BB 10,000 (8,000) (1,800) = - 200
300,000 (240,000 (54,000) - - 6,000
New Scheme #atdl
Consultants FEIUN - - = 63,640 (63640) =
300,000 (240,000 (54,000 63,640 (63,640) 6,000
Exercisable at 31 March 2013 RZZE—=%
=A=t-8
AT 1768 -
Notes: P 3t -

On 23 August 2012, the exercise price of the share options was adjusted from HK$0.10
per share to HK$0.50 per share as a result of the capital reorganisation as disclosed
in note 24. Accordingly, the total number of share options granted was adjusted from
300,000,000 shares to 60,000,000 shares.

On 31 January 2013, the exercise price was adjusted from HK$0.5 per share to HK$5
per share as a result of the share consolidation as disclosed in note 24. Accordingly, the
total number of share options granted was adjusted from 60,000,000 to 6,000,000.

According to the terms of the Old Scheme, the share options were lapsed upon the BEEMIAZHT BRERAE
resignation of directors and employees of the Group or Participants. As the directors, ESRESHLEEHEERRN - A
employees and consultants who held share options under the Old Scheme resigned REREHEETHEREZES E
from their respective position during the year, their outstanding share options lapsed BRBAARAFEREIKESBLZ
accordingly on their respective resignation dates. B MEREZARTEBERERS

R-ZZE——FNA-+=H BR#E
THEUMBEZEAER BRE
ZIIEBREROIOETAREZER
05078 7T ° EIt + BT IR ) B AR 8 42 20 v
300,000,000 1% 7 % = 60,000,00013 °

R-ZZE—=5—F=+-—0B hng
TMFUMBEBEZROAN TEE
REROSETAREERSET - Al
BT 1% 4 B8 A% 4 48 28 /R 60,000,00017 3 2
Z6,00000017 ©

BZBERBRR-
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26. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

In respect of share options exercised during the year ended 31 March 2014,
the weighted average share price at the dates of exercise is HK$0.63 (2013:
HK$1.01 (adjusted by share consolidation)) per share.

During the year ended 31 March 2014, 11,455,244 (2013: 63,640,248)
options were granted and vested on 19 April 2013 (2013: granted and
vested onl4 January 2013). The estimated fair value of the options granted
and vested on 19 April 2013 (2013: granted and vested on |4 January
2013) is approximately HK$2,947,000 (2013: HK$2,571,000), which was
fully recognised as share option expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the year. The
Group recognised the total share option expense of HK$5,390,000 for the
year ended 31 March 2014 (2013: HK$10,903,000) in relation to the share

options granted.

The fair value of the share options granted on |9 April 2013 was calculated
using the Binomial Tree method (the “Method”). The inputs into the model
were as follows:

Grant date stock price HK$0.630
Exercise price HK$0.644
Expected volatility 50.79%
Expected life 4.35 vyears
Risk-free rate 0.8892%
Expected dividend yield 0%

,%?\A ot 75 ¥ 2% B &

—ME=A=+—-RAL%E

26. ARG AER 2SR @)

URELEEBREE(Z)
BERE_FT-NF=-A=+—HL
FERTECEREMS  R11E
BEl 2 MEFHRERTROE
T(ZE—=F: 1018 T(BARHE
PEmfEL AZE))

BE_Z2-—WmNF=ZA=+—HL
FE 452440 (ZF — = F:
636402481 ) BEREE R T — =
FOHA+NBREREB(ZE—=
FR-_F—=ZF—A+HEBRH
LEB) RZE—=F0ATA
AREEEB(ZE—=F K%
—ZF - A1t EBERLEEEE)Z
B 2T B A29470008
TT(ZE—=F 25710008 ) * I
REAFERZEEBEahREM2EK
BETEERRABRERST B
E-EME=A=+—HItFE"
AEEERAREMBLBERESH
2B 25390008 T (=&
— =4 1 1090300058 7T) °

RZE-—=FNA+NARKRLE
%%Zﬁi@ﬁﬁ—ﬁﬁﬁ#ﬁﬁ
(ZEBEXDFE-ZER 28 A
S UNNE

BREBHRE 063078 7T
R 064478 7T
TEHDR 18 50.79%
TRETF 5 4354
2 2l P ) 2 0.8892%
HHREX 0%
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26.

27.

H%#E%EBTT*I

—HE=A=F+—-RAL%FE

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

The fair value of share options granted on 14 January 2013 was calculated
using the Method. The inputs into the Method were as follows:

Grant date share price HK$0.104
Exercise price HK$0.105
Expected volatility 51.27%
Expected life 3.78 years
Risk-free rate 0.8222%
Expected dividend yield 0%

Expected volatility was determined by using historical volatility of four
comparable companies with similar business at grant date. The expected
life used in the Method has been adjusted, based on management’s best
estimate, for the effects of non transferability, exercise restrictions and
behavioural considerations.

26.

ARGBRER 2N
M&E?Eﬁ&%ﬁJﬁﬂ

RZE-—=ZF-A+HEBARLE
BEZAFEDEZERE %
BERAzBASBENT :

=R 0.10478 7T
171E(E 0.1057% 7T
TR HDK 18 5127%
T AT F H 3784
R b F X 0.8222%
HHRE X 0%

TEHRIE DERRE L A RELRR
EBZORAELBAAZERK
BET ZEAMAEMFHER
AIEFF):[MEE— 1Eu+5’j_$—.[$-ru§
TERBRZREEZRRRERZ
TEELHE -

Note:  The above weighted average share price and grant date share price have not Bisr: EFanEEHREREH ARG
adjusted by the share subdivision of the Company on 4 June 2014. WERANGR -_E—NES AN
RETZROFAELAE -
OPERATING LEASES 7. RERE
The Group as lessee AEEEBERBEA
At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future RMEHKR REBRFIHER
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall BN EE AKRSZERESE
due as follows: HBEMmT:
2014 2013
—E-QmFE —T-=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TAET
Within one year —FR 6,764 27,350
In the second to fifth year F-EERE 4,134 23,009
10,898 50,359

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Group for
certain of its office premises and shops. Leases are negotiated for one to
three years with fixed monthly rentals over the lease term. Certain leases
include contingent rentals calculated with reference to turnover of the
shops.
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28. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) for all qualifying employees Hong Kong. The MPF Scheme
is established under the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance since
December 2000. The assets of the schemes are held separately from those
of the Group, in funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of relevant payroll costs to the MPF Scheme (capped at HK$ 1,250 per
month effective in June 2012), which contribution is matched by employee.

The employees of the subsidiaries in the PRC are members of a state-
managed retirement benefits schemes operated by the PRC government.
The relevant PRC subsidiaries are required to make contributions to the
state retirement schemes in the PRC based on certain percentage of the
monthly salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to
make the specific contributions.

During the year, the employer's contribution to the MPF Schemes and
various benefits schemes in the PRC is HK$433,000 (2013: HK$528,000)
and HK$4,528,000 (2013: HK$4,244,000) respectively.

The contributions made by the Group to the MPF Scheme and state
retirement schemes are charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income when employees have rendered

service to the Group.

,%?\A ot 75 ¥ 2% B &

—ME=A=+—-RAL%E

28. BRIKFRIGHE

FEEREREABAEBRERRE
Rl M REE () ﬁﬁf%H)

BESHE B ?ZE +
AR E R HIE D aiﬁ%%%ﬂmo
AECEERAKEZEEDRRE

B WHMRETIAMERZESE
BoASERBEEMAAEZ5%M
BESHEELHRI(R_E—Z=F
NAEMZ FRAEFA 12508 TT)
B{E 8 2 HHER -

TENBLARCEEHZ2ETEK
REBZBRARBHTE - ZFHHE

FERBARYEREEEE AF
ZETBE2HAMPBEBERRKEE
ERHR UZNBEBAERFN - K&
ERZERERNFE cE—REAR
{/EH:'JT f /T)\

REAFE BERNBREETERF
BZEEMEMEERD A A
4330007 (= F — = £ : 528000
AIT) %4528008 L (=T —=F:
424400078 7T ) °

REBRBE TS RBEREMRE
&1 P AR S 3R 1R 8 1 A 5 B 3R 41 AR

BEEGaBRE R EMEERER
HER
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29. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of directors and other members of key management

during the year was as follows:

29 BEALRS
TESEASMS
EERHEMTEEREKNERATE
EzBemT:

2014 2013

—E-mE —T-—=F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Salaries and other benefits HeLEMER 9,356 9,576
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RIRE M ET B3 74 99
Share-based payments AR RERE 2 3K 2,360 8,055
11,790 17,730

The remuneration of directors and key executives is determined by the
remuneration committee having regard to the performance of individuals
and market trends.

30. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
On 4 June 2014, the Company effected a share subdivision that subdivide
each existing issued and authorised but unissued share of the Company of
HK$0.10 each into ten shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each.
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Issued and fully paid
ordinary share capital/

For the year ended 31 March 2014 = =

,%?\A ot 75 ¥ 2% B &

—ME=A=+—-RAL%E

3. RRARETEMB AR ZHE

registered and Attributable equity
contributed capital interest held
Place of BRITRAR by the Group
Name incorporation EERBRE/ rEEfE Principal activities
&1 AfRUEd  ERRAAER BiERAER IERE
2014 2013
“B-[E —T--F
Direct subsidiary
ERMELR
Tack Fiori Intemational Group British VirginIslands | ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited (Note a) (“BVI) US$| each RERK
FEERREARAR(NEa) REEXES |IRBREEIXRT
(RBRZ LERK
1))
Indirect subsidiaries
AENELR
Tack Fiori Corporate Services Limited ~ Hong Kong | ordinary share of 100% 100%  Corporate administrative
BB HK$! each services
REBAEIBT GETHRE
£AR
Real Victor Limited Hong Kong | ordinary share of 100% 100%  Investment holding
EEARAR] &b HKS$! each REZR
IRERAGRIET
ANEEEEREARARA The PRC RMB28,000,000 100% 100%  Retail of apparels
(Note b) (tEb) G AR 280000007 REZE
EERNGERREERAR  ThePRC RMBI,000,000 - ~  Retal of apparels
(H5HN]) Note d) (HFd)  HE ARH 10000007 RETE
FEER(LR)FEFRAR  ThePRC HK$31,200,000 100% 100%  Retail of apparels
([B5RE]) G (2013: HK$18,600,000) REZE

(Notes b & ¢) (Fit b K c)

31,2000008 (=5 —

18,600,0007% 7T.)

—F:
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31. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY  3I. AARTEMB AR Z2HE %)

(Continued)
Issued and fully paid
ordinary share capital/
registered and Attributable equity
contributed capital interest held
Place of BRITRAR by the Group
Name incorporation EERBRE/ rEBfE Principal activities
2R EMEIBE  ERRAAER EhERF &R EE3 3
2014 2013
—B-PF —“T-=F
TF Treasury Activities Limited BVI | ordinary share of 100% 100%  Securities trading and
EEROHE US$| each investment
|REREE X7 EREERRE
&R
The Sound Chamber Hongbang The PRC RMB!,000,000 - 100%  Retai of audio and
Beiing Co, Ltd (Notes b &) G AR 10000007 Hi-Fi equipment
BEEARREEMLR) SERBTE
ARAA(MiEbRe)
Tiret (Hong Kong) Limited (Note €) Hong Kong 10,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Retall of watch
HEEEER AR (Fite) Bk of HK$! each BRIE
100005 B X E &
BT ERBR
Time Window Limited Hong Kong 300,000 ordinary shares = 100%  Retall of watch
(Notee) (Fitite) &b of HK$! each BHTE
300,000k R E E
BT EBR
Rainbow Pharmacy Co. Limited Hong Kong | ordinary share of = [00%  Pharmacy and healthcare
(Note €) GED) BiE HK$ | each products retail business
IRERAGRIET BERRREREE
Brune Blonde Limited Hong Kong | ordinary share of - 100%  Salon and beauty services
(Notee) (Fize) B HKS I each business
| BRmEE A SRFEEUR
ERR XARBEH
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PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(Continued)
Note:

a The subsidiary was directly held by the Company.

b The companies were established as wholly foreign owned enterprise under laws of the
PRC.

c The company was established during the year ended 31 March 2013. During the year
ended 31 March 2014, the Group injected registered capital of HK$12,600,000 in & 55
B

d The Company does not have equity interest in the registered capital of B 55 7 as
it is owned by employees of the Group. Pursuant to certain agreements entered into
between the owners of £ 5 & 77 and the Group, the owners of % 55 I 77 agreed
to assign the power to appoint and remove all the members of the board of directors
of and to govern the financial and operating policies of & 55 ¥ 77 to the Group and
to transfer all beneficial interests of 2 5 B /] to the Group. Accordingly, f 5
77 is treated as a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and its results, assets and

liabilities are consolidated with those of the Group.

e These companies were disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2014.

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities in issue at any time during
the years ended 3| March 2014 and 2013.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give details of other
subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length

31.

FRARERMBARZHEE @)
B
2 BHEARGAAAEERE-

AR 1B o BUABIAK L RSN B

>Htk>>

g
é“ﬁ

¢ HBARRBE-BE-=€£=A=1+-
ALtEERI - BHE-_T-—NE=A
S+-HALEE FAEERTGSRE
EAGER A AR 12,600,000 7T ©

d FARAIARBEREHZAMERDLE
FEBRA#Z REASZARALE
ERERE -REFSHNEAAR
AEEAMAIUCETHE HEESD
BEAREAAKEERZARES
MEESEEHNEUREETER N
MEREEREZEN YAAKE
BRESR N 2BEAER - At
BERENRRRTARZ2ENB AR
HXE  BERABRAKEGAARK -

e ZELANRBE_FT-DNF=A
=t-RIEFEEH-

MENBLARNAZ _T-—NFR
—E-ZF-A=T-HLFER

EMEERTEMEBES -

FRINHESRATEHAFEE
BERFESBERNAEBERTH
BEFEZARRANBAR -ES
RE BNEMHBARZFIES
BYRBBRILE °
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Year ended 31| March

BE=-A=t—-HLHFE
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—E-NE —T-=F T —T——F ZT-FTF
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FHET FHET FET
(restated) (note a) (note a) (note a)
(E7) GETY (FiEa) (B &Ea)
RESULTS £ |
Turnover from continuing B K& ¥ 2
operations LR 22,469 25,149 56516 53,694 55,648
Loss for the year from BELCEEB
continuing operations KEEER (70,570) (109837) NATER NATER NATEAB
Loss for the year from BERIEEBZ
discontinued operations AN Z &5 18 (40,234) (16150) NATEA NATEHA NATERB
(Loss) profit for the year N4 Z (E518)
i A (110,804) (125987) 1,293,605 91,181) (58921)
(Loss) profit for the year AN AT JE
attributable to: EAREZ(EE)
A
Owners of the Company  AQAIHEA A (110,804) (125,987) 1,293,771 (93,138) (59,239)
Non-controlling interests ~ FE1% A% # 2 - - (166) [,957 318
(110,804) (125,987) 1,293,605 ©1,181) (58921)
As at 31 March
R=RA=+-H
2014 2013 2012 2011 2010
—B-mFE —ZT—= T —T-——F —ZZT-IZF
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT FHET FHET FHET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEER & &
Total assets BEHE 166,801 177,624 199,027 58,845 52424
Total liabilities BRES (18,227) (35218) (34644)  (1446470)  (1,349,070)
148,574 142,406 164383 (1,387,625  (1,296,646)
Equity attributable to ARAERA
owners of the Company ~ JE{G 125 148,574 142,406 164,383 (1434740)  (1,341,804)
Non-controlling interest ~ JF 122 A& 4 25 - - - 47,115 45,158
148,574 142,406 164,383 (1,387,625  (1,296,646)

Note a: The result for each of the year ended 31 March 2010, 2011 and 2012 have not been

represented for the operations discontinued during the year ended 31 March 2014,
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Information about the statement of financial position of the Company at the end
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Information About the Financial Position of the Company
BBEADQ R MBI 2 E R

RBEEHR ARBFHRRAK 2 EH

of the reporting period includes: B
2014 2013
—E-NFE —T--=F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Non-current assets E(RBEE
Unlisted investment in a subsidiary R—ZMBRAZFLMERE - -
Current assets RBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries A NG = 166,01 |
Other receivables H {th E UG ZR 18 280 |14
Bank and cash balances AT RIS &R 132,536 33,487
Total assets EEH#E 132,816 199,612
Current liabilities REBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary R — KB R B A (11,500) -
Trade and other payables R E 5 K E A (980) (1,149)
Net assets EEFE 120,336 198463
Capital and reserves BRA R G5
Share capital (see note 24) BN (R R EE24) 21,444 1,455
Reserves 1 98,892 187,008
Total equity ERAH 120,336 198,463
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EEAQRTATHEMRREZ2ER

Movement of the Company’s reserve are disclosed as follows:

ARAlREC BB RENT

Share
Share option Contributed Other Accumulated
premium reserve surplus reserve losses Total
BRE
125 B R BABRHK HURE ZFEE Azt
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
TER THER TER TER THER TER
At | April 2012 RoB——%
MA—A 660,455 1,735 167,780 - (995,981) (166,011)
Loss for the year AEEER = = = = (57,672) (57,672)
Issue of new shares under placement BRERERTHES 9,546 = = = = 9,546
Issue of new shares under rightsissue AR B AR S 1T HTAL 15 76,368 - - - - 76,368
Transaction cost attributable BITRG EM
to issue of shares RHEAK (4,009) = = = = (4,009)
Issue of shares upon exercise TR
of share options &) 6,046 (2.571) = 2571 = 6,046
Capital reduction BRHA = - - = 311837 311837
Recognition of equity-settled R A P A 4 5 DA
share-based payment Bin BER 2R - 10903 - - - 10,903
At 31 March 2013 RNZE—=F
ZA=+-H 748406 10067 167,780 2571 (74181¢) 187,008
Loss for the year AEEEE - - - - (194451)  (194451)
Issue of new shares under placement RIREE BTHRO 98,300 - - - - 98,300
Issue of new shares under rightsissue AR & L AR B 1T TR 19 (3,588) - - - - (3,588)
Transaction cost attributable BITRMIEN
10 issue of shares TR 6,233 = = = = 6,233
Issue of shares upon exercise T BRERRT
of share options & 5 = (2,947) = 2,947 = =
Recognition of equity-settled TR AR 5 5 2L
share-based payment RiD BER 2[5 - 5,390 - - - 5,390
Lapse of equity-setted share-based LA RS 4 4 & BARS 15
payment RERZNREHK - (12,510) - — 12,510 —
At 31 March 2014 R-E-—DEF
=A=t+-A 849,35 ~ 167780 5518 (923757) 98892
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